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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is a hibteology company focused on designing, optimizind developing novel small molecule
pharmaceuticals that block key enzymes essenti@idiocer, cardiovascular diseases, autoimmunesdisesnd viral infections. Our most
advanced drug candidate, forodesine hydrochlofl€X-1777" or “forodesine”), is an investigationglirine nucleoside phosphorylase
(“PNP™) inhibitor for the treatment of T-cell medéal disorders.

Our Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to use strudtased drug design technologies to develop innaasimall-molecule pharmaceuticals to treat a
variety of diseases and disorders. We focus ouy dewelopment efforts on building potent, selecinrgbitors of enzymes associated with
targeted diseases. Enzymes are proteins that cags@ble biological reactions necessary for tlhgmssion of the disease or disorder. The
specific enzymes on which we focus are called erztargets. The Company aims to design compountlsvitidnhibit an enzyme target by
fitting the active site of a particular enzyme.ibition means interfering with the functioning af anzyme target, thereby stopping or slowing
the progression of the disease or disorder. Theeipal elements of our strategy are:

. Select and License Promising Enzyme Targets for Bevelopment oSmall-Molecule PharmaceuticaldVe use our technical
expertise and network of academic and industryamstto evaluate and select promising enzyme tatgéicense for the development
of smal-molecule pharmaceuticals. We choose enzyme tatfustsneet as many of the following criteria as fuss

- serve important functions in disease pathw
- have known animal or c-based models that would be indicative of resultsumans

- address large potential markets and significantetrmedical needs, including pursuing niche markétsre the results have
potential application to broader markets and ne

- have multiple potential clinical applications; €
- offer rapid development and commercialization opydties.

. Focus on High Value-Added Structure-Based Drug DgsiTechnologiesWe focus our drug discovery activities and expamdi on
applications of structure-based drug design teduies to design and develop drug candidates. 8testsed drug design is a proc
by which we design a drug candidate through detaitealysis of the enzyme target, which the druglichrte must inhibit in order to
stop the progression of the disease or disorderb#lieve that structure-based drug design is a daleol for efficient development
of small-molecule drug candidates that have themqi@l to be safe, effective and relatively inexgiea to manufacture. Our structure-
based drug design technologies typically allowauddsign and synthesize multiple drug candidatsitiibit the same enzyme tarc
We believe this strategy can lead to broad pateteption and enhance the competitive advantagesrofompounds

. Develop or License Inhibitors that are Promising @didates forCommercialization We test multiple compounds to identify those
that are most promising for clinical developmene Wase our selection of promising development citels on desirable product
characteristics, such as initial indications oksafind efficacy. We believe that this focusedtsyy allows us to eliminate
unpromising candidates from consideration soon#romt incurring substantial clinical costs. In dduti, we select drug candidates on
the basis of their potential for relatively effintePhase | and Phase Il clinical trials that regjfewer patients to initially indicate safety
and efficacy. We will consider, however, more coexptandidates with longer development cycles ibeikeve that they offer
promising commercial opportunitie



An important element of our businesstsgig is to control fixed costs and overhead throemhtracting and entering into license
agreements with other parties. We maintain a stieathcorporate infrastructure that focuses onstrangest areas of expertise. By
contracting with other specialty organizations,bedieve that we can control costs, enable our deuglidates to reach the market more
quickly and reduce our business risk. Key elemehtair contracting strategy include:

. Entering Into Relationships with Academic Instituins andBiotechnology Companiedviany academic institutions and
biotechnology companies perform extensive reseanctne molecular and structural biology of potdrdimg development targets. By
entering into relationships with these institutiows believe we can significantly reduce the tigwst and risks involved in drug
development. Our collaborative relationships witklsorganizations may lead to the licensing of @nenore drug targets or
compounds. Upon licensing a drug target or prorgisimmpound from one of these institutions, thergiges from the institution
typically become working partners as members ofsturcture-based drug design teams. We believerthies us a more attractive
development partner to these scientists. In additiee collaborate with outside experts in a hundfereas, including crystallography,
molecular modeling, combinatorial chemistry, bigipgharmacology, oncology, cardiology, immunology anfectious diseases.
These collaborations enable us to complement ¢emal capabilities without adding costly overheat believe this strategy allows
us to save valuable time and expense, and furthiersify and strengthen our portfolio of drug catates. An example of such a
collaborative relationship is the arrangement tahave with The University of Alabama at Birmingh&UAB”), which has resulte
in the initiation of several of our early drug dexmment programs

. Developing Drug Development Candidates or Licensifigem to OtheiParties.We generally plan to advance drug candidates
through initial and/or early-stage drug developm€t larger disease indications requiring comléxcal trials, our strategy is to
license drug candidates to pharmaceutical or bimielogy partners for final development and globarketing. We believe
partnerships are a good source of development patgiiiense fees, milestone payments and royalfiesy also reduce the costs ¢
risks, and increase the effectiveness, of lateespagduct development, regulatory approval, marnufamy and marketing. We believe
that focusing on discovery and early-stage druglibgment while benefiting from our partners’ prowd@velopment and
commercialization expertise will reduce our intdregpenses and allow us to have a larger numberugf candidates progress to late-
stage drug development. However, after establishilegd product candidate, we are willing to lieetigat candidate during any stage
of the development process we determine to be lméaleh the company and to the ultimate developnaead commercialization of
that drug candidate. For some smaller niche disea$eations markets, we may choose to completeldpment, manufacture, and
where appropriate market and distribute any apgtavags ourselves, such as forodesine hydrochldoidé-cell leukemias

Products in Development

The following table summarizes BioCr’s active development projects as of February 2852

Program and Candidate Delivery Development Worldwide
Disease Category/Indication Form Stage Rights
PNP Inhibitor (forodesine HCI, BC-1777) Intravenous Phase | BioCryst
Oncology Oral Phase BioCryst
PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208) Oral Phase BioCryst
Autoimmune disease
Hepatitis C Polymerase Inhibitors Oral Lead Optimizatior BioCryst
Viral
Tissue Factor/Factor Vlla Inhibitors Oral Lead Optimizatior BioCryst

Cardiovascular / Oncoloc



T-cell Related Diseases

Overview The link between T-cell proliferation and the ipernucleoside phosphorylase, or PNP, enzyme wstgdiscovered
approximately twenty-five years ago when a patietip was genetically deficient in PNP, exhibitedited T-cell activity, but reasonably
normal activity of other immune functions. In othpatients lacking PNP activity, the T-cell popubatiwas selectively depleted; however, B-
cell function tended to be normal. Based on thaskrfgs and the results of cell culture studiehjbiiing PNP appears to produce selective
suppression of T-cells without significantly impag the function of other cells.

The human immune system employs speeikzlls, including T-cells, to control infectiog lecognizing and attacking disease-
causing viruses, bacteria and parasites. T-calaaressential part of the body’s immune systernstirae a dual purpose to both orchestrate
and participate in the body’s immune response tk@most part, this system works flawlessly to @cothe body. However, when T-cells
multiply uncontrollably, T-cell proliferative diseas, such as T-cell cancers, can occur.

Acute Lymphoblastic LeukemiBhe most common form of leukemia in childrendste lymphoblastic leukemia (also known as ALL).
According to the American Cancer Society, 3,970 nages (adult and children combined) will be diagmbin the United States in 2005 (T-
cell and B-cell). ALL results from an acquired injuo the DNA of a single cell in the bone marrow.

T-cell LymphomalLymphoma is a general term for a group of cantteasoriginate in the lymphatic system. About B8 &mericans
will be diagnosed with a non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma2®05 and approximately 15% of these will be congidd -cell lymphomas. T-cell
lymphoma results when alymphocyte (a type of white blood cell) undergoenalignant change and begins to multiply, evemjuaibwding
out healthy cells and creating tumors, which erdahg lymph nodes and invade other sites in thg.l@dtaneous T-cell lymphoma
(“CTCL") is a primary skin neoplasm and accountsriearly 50% of all T-cell malignancies.

T-cell Mediated Autoimmune Diseafiseases such as psoriasis, rheumatoid arthrititjpie sclerosis, and Crohn’s disease appear tc
have activated T-cells as a major part of theihpgénesis. Therefore, inhibition and/or eliminatidrsuch cells could have a beneficial effect
on these diseases.

PNP Inhibition PNP is an enzyme that plays an important role-@ell proliferation, because it is necessary tomaan normal DNA
synthesis in human T-cells. Selective inhibitiorPOP causes certain nucleosides, including de@yagine, to accumulate. As the
concentration of deoxyguanosine increases withaells, it is converted by specific enzymes to demanosine triphosphate. A high
concentration of deoxyguanosine triphosphate irllscauses an imbalance in the intra-cellulautrieotide pool and thus causes cell death.

Our PNP Inhibitor(s)

BackgroundIn June 2000, we licensed a series of potenbitdns of PNP from Albert Einstein College of Meidie of Yeshiva
University (“AECOM”) and Industrial Research, Lidew Zealand (“IRL"). The lead drug candidate frdmstcollaboration, forodesine
hydrochloride, is a more potent inhibitor of huntgmphocyte proliferation than other previously kmo®RNP inhibitors. Extensive preclinical
studies and early patient data indicate that fasimgiecan modulate T-cell activities. Forodesinanisnvestigational PNP inhibitor for the
potential treatment of T-cell leukemias and lymplagm

During 2002, we exercised the optiondd a new compound, BCX-4208, to the series of ittnib of PNP licensed from AECOM and
IRL. Preclinical results indicate that BCX-4208isnore potent inhibitor than forodesine. We pladdgelop BCX-4208 for autoimmune
diseases such as psoriasis and rheumatoid arthritis



PNP Inhibitor (forodesine hydrochloride, BCX-1777)
Overview

The first clinical trial with an intravens formulation of forodesine was a Phase | clirtital that enrolled T-cell leukemia patients at
the M.D. Anderson Cancer Center in Houston, Texdse Phase | trial was an open-label dose-escalatialy of forodesine in relapsed or
refractory patients. Because of the clinical resséten in the initial trial and some additionatitesby our colleagues at the M.D. Anderson
Cancer Center, we started three additional tria20i03 for refractory patients with other typediematologic malignancies, cutaneous T-cell
lymphoma, and solid tumors. Preclinical studiethatM.D. Anderson Cancer Center indicate that fesite induces the same biochemical
changes in various other types of leukemia celis éhe responsible for the inhibition of T-leukero@ls, which suggest that forodesine may
be even more broadly applicable than originallyested. Initial Phase | clinical results in patientth B-cell acute lymphoblastic leukemia
have been encouraging, and we plan to pursue additB-cell leukemia clinical studies during 2005.

Current Development Strategy

Forodesine Clinical Development for Agegiee T-cell MalignanciesDuring 2004, we initiated a Phase lla trial toadinup to 20
patients with aggressive T-cell malignancies. Diespincouraging results observed with other T-gak#ic agents, the prognosis for patients
with relapsed or refractory leukemia or lymphomaasr and treatment options remain limited. Thel gbshe Phase lla clinical trial is to
determine the therapeutic effect produced by fasdeas it relates to the proposed mechanism mfraict the inhibition of proliferating T-
lymphocytes in patients with T-cell ALL and to denstrate this effect can be sustained over a 3(bddypd.

We have obtained orphan drug statusdiardesine in multiple indications. Our strategyfiture development is to pursue with the
FDA fast-track designation, and using the resultsined to date in the Phase lla study to negati@&pecial Protocol Assessment (“SP#gY)
the design of a Phase llb trial, which dependinghenresults, could serve as the pivotal trialtfer filing of a New Drug Application
(“NDA") in T-cell acute lymphoblastic leukemia. Oaurrent intent is for the Company itself to mar&atl distribute forodesine in the United
States for treatment of T-cell cancers.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, weoalsitiated a Phase | trial with an oral formulatiof forodesine for treatment of patients with
CTCL. This Phase I trial initially consisted of eipatients, including three cohorts of patienthege different dose levels, to determine the
safety and pharmacokinetic profile of the oral fatation. Assuming successful completion of the RBHastudy, our plan is to transition this
trial into a Phase Il study during 2005 to deterrtime efficacy of this oral formulation and to dditeh the optimum dose that will be required
for future clinical trials in CTCL.

During 2005, we plan to initiate a PhBHestudy in patients with B-cell ALL based on thesults we observed in our previous Phase |
trial which were presented at the American Soaétyematology in December 2004.

PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208)
Overview

We believe that the results to date fmmPhase | trials of forodesine support the pplecthat inhibition of PNP has a direct effect on
proliferation of activated T-lymphocytes. We arewndeveloping BCX-4208, a second-generation PNPRbitd, as a drug candidate for the
treatment of T-cell mediated autoimmune diseasefjding psoriasis. Although BCX-4208 and forodesime both investigational PNP
inhibitors, BCX-4208 differs from forodesine in mificant ways. For example, BCX-4208 is more patant has the ability to suppress PNP
for longer periods of time. Thus, BCX-4208 has ptitd advantages over forodesine for the treatroédiseases requiring long-term, chronic
administration of a PNP inhibitor.

Current Development Strategy

During the first half of 2004, we condetta series of preclinical toxicology studies wBtfiX-4208 and during the fourth quarter of
2004 we initiated a Phase | clinical trial with B&I208 in healthy volunteers. This initial trial wstarted to determine the safety, oral
bioavailability and pharmacokinetics of BCX-4208dxyrolling eighty-four subjects, twelve subjectsaven different cohorts with each
cohort having a dose escalation over the previotsrt. Assuming successful results from this tdair, plan is to initiate a multi-dose Phase |
trial during the second quarter and begin a PHasal during the second half of 2005 in psorgagatients.
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Tissue Factor/Factor Vlla
Overview

A series of complicated reactions takasgin the body whenever a blood clot begins tmfarhe major initiator of these reactions is
an enzyme system called the tissue factor/factta YTF/FVIla”) complex. Animal tests show that vaus inhibitors of the TF/FVlla
complex can minimize blood clot formation as walliaflammatory responses. This sort of inhibitias been tested with a number of
biological agents including the natural inhibitdrtiee pathway, synthetic peptides and protein ibib, and antibodies against tissue factor.
However, there are no small molecule drugs culyemtlthe market that intervene at the TF/FVlla leve

We believe that small molecule inhibitofsTF/FVIla may potentially be useful for treatingute coronary syndromes and
complications associated with cardiovascular prapes] such as coronary angioplasty and stent iogeytbecause any type of damage to
arteries and blood vessels exposes tissue fadhichwhen triggers clot formation. Myocardial inféon, unstable angina, and restenosis
during and following angioplasty procedures argatential treatment targets. In addition, tissatdr is involved in angiogenesis, or new
blood vessel growth, and inhibitors of the TF/F\Mitamplex are believed to have potential as antieyanesis agents for use in oncology.

BackgroundWe have an agreement with Sunol Molecular Cord“Sunol”) to expedite the discovery of new grecandidates
designed to inhibit TF/FVIla. Under the terms dstagreement, Sunol supplies us protein for oug diesign program.

Current Development Strategy

We are continuing to design and synthesize grofiperapounds that are potent and selective inhiitdrTF/FVIla and further
optimization is ongoing to identify a compound fweclinical development of a TF/FVlla inhibitor @mal form. We are also looking at
potential opportunities for drug eluting stent apgions with some of our earlier compounds thaeheffective potency, but low oral
bioavailability.

Hepatitis C
Overview

Hepatitis C virus (“HCV") infection has been debed in the New England Journal of Medicine as #i#on’s most common chronic
blood-borne infection. Up to 3% of the wordddopulation has been infected with HCV. Accordimghe National Centers for Disease Con
as many as 75-85% of those infected with HCV walvé chronic infection and 70% of those will devettyonic liver disease. While there
are several approved treatments for chronic HC¥igiaicombination therapy of interferon and ribawithere are some potentially severe
effects to these treatments.

BackgroundIn June 2000, we licensed intellectual propemyrf Emory University (“Emory”) related to the heiiatC polymerase
target associated with hepatitis C viral infectiddader the original terms of the agreement, tiseaech investigators from Emory providet
with materials and technical insight into the targe

Current Development Strategy

We are targeting HCV polymerase through collabweeatind in-house efforts. Specifically, we are feclien development of orally
active inhibitors against the RNA-dependent RNAypodrase. Competition for this target is less intethan for the HCV protease target and
history suggests the likelihood of designing a ukiehibitor against this target may be better tdasigning inhibitors against the protease.

Currently, we are designing, synthesizing and singepotential compounds against HCV polymerasecBipally, our scientists are
measuring the potency and ability of potential dcagdidates to block the replication of HCV polyass in vitro, or in test tubes. These
experiments measure the potency of each selectedamd’s ability to block replication. Advancedesening is also underway to measure
the fit of promising compounds in the HCV polymerasgtive site using X-ray crystallography and cotapmolecular modeling. The goal is
to identify a series of compounds that are potenitro inhibitors of the active site of the HCVIpmerase for further testing and lead
optimization.



We also have agreements in place with the Natilmrstitute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases, atwfiThe National Institutes of
Health, and the U.S. Army Medical Research Ingitftinfectious Diseases to assay promising intiibifrom the HCV polymerase program
for activity against Severe Acute Respiratory Sgnae (SARS), West Nile and Ebola viruses.

Additional Products

In addition to our four active programs, the Compalso retains exclusive rights to potent inhitstof influenza neuraminidase and
parainfluenza neuraminidase and maintains the pptetfolio for these inhibitors. The Company witintinue to take the necessary steps to
retain the value of these programs with the goawveitually partnering these programs.

Structure-Based Drug Design

Structure-based drug design is a drug discoveryoagh by which we design synthetic compounds fremaited structural knowledge
of the active sites of enzyme targets associatéd pairticular diseases. Enzymes are proteins thatsacatalysts for many vital biological
reactions. Our goal generally is to design a comgdhat will fit in the active site of an enzymabdtactive site of an enzyme is the area into
which a chemical or biological molecule fits totiaie a biochemical reaction) and thereby interfeite the progression of disease.

Our structure-based drug design involves the agiptio of both traditional biology and medicinal ofistry and an array of advanced
technologies. We use X-ray crystallography, compmnedeling of molecular structures and advancednistey techniques to focus on the
three-dimensional molecular structure and actitechiaracteristics of the enzymes that controutailbiology.

We believe that structure-based drug design teclgies are superior to drug screening techniquesd@tifying the target enzyme in
advance and by discovering the chemical and maestiucture of the enzyme, we believe it is pdedib design a better drug to interact
with the enzyme. In addition, the structural dattamed by X-ray crystallographic analysis allovd#idnal analysis and compound
modification at each stage of the biological evaara This capability makes structure-based drugjgiea powerful tool for efficient
development of drugs that are highly specific fartigular enzyme target sites.

Research and Development

We initiated our research and development prograt®86, with drug synthesis beginning in 1987. \leehassembled a scientific
research staff with expertise in a broad base wfacked research technologies including proteinHaotstry, X-ray crystallography,
chemistry and pharmacology. Our research facilitiekide protein biochemistry and organic synth&ieratories, testing facilities, X-ray
crystallography, computer and graphics equipmedtfagilities to make drug candidates on a smalkesita early stage clinical trials.

During the years ended December 31, 2002, 2002@04|, we spent an aggregate of $45.9 million ceaeh and development.
Approximately $25.0 million of that amount was spen in-house research and development, and $20i®mwas spent on contract
research and development.

Collaborative Relationships
Corporate Alliances

Sunol Molecular Corplin April 1999, we entered into an agreement \@itmol. This agreement requires Sunol to conduetares and
supply us with protein targets for drug designxpeglite the discovery of new drug candidates desida inhibit tissue factor/factor Vlla for
our cardiovascular program.



Academic Alliances

The University of Alabama at BirminghaiYe have had a close relationship with UAB singeformation. Our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Dr. Charles E. Bugg, was thevjares Director of the UAB Center for Macromolecu@uystallography, and our President,
Chief Operating Officer and Medical Director, DrClaude Bennett, was the former President of UB former Chairman of the
Department of Medicine at UAB and a former Chairméthe Department of Microbiology at UAB. Seveoélour consultants are employed
by UAB. UAB has a large X-ray crystallography centéth approximately 121 full-time staff membersdaspproximately $16.5 million in
research grants and contract funding in 2004. S¢eéour early programs originated at UAB.

We currently have agreements with UAB for influemzairaminidase and complement inhibitors. Undetdhas of these agreements,
UAB performed specific research for us in returnrissearch payments and license fees. UAB hasagtarst certain rights to any discoveries
in these areas resulting from research developadA®y or jointly developed with us. We have agreegay royalties on sales of any
resulting product and to share in future paymeeteived from other third-party collaborators. Wedaompleted the research under the
UAB influenza agreement. We funded the researchraro under the complement inhibitors agreemenutjitdvarch 2002, which entitled
to an assignment of, or a right to an exclusiverlge for, any inhibitors of specified complemerryenes developed by UAB scientists during
the period of support or for a one-year periodehéier. These two agreements have initial 25-yexang, are automatically renewable for five-
year terms throughout the life of the last patertt are terminable by us upon three months notidebgtriJAB under certain circumstanc

Albert Einstein College of Medicine ofNiea University and Industrial Research, Ltd, N&saland. In June 2000, we licensed a se
of potent inhibitors of PNP from AECOM and IRL. Tlead drug candidate from this collaboration iotEsine. We have the rights to
develop and ultimately distribute this, or any otlteug candidate that might arise from researcthese inhibitors. For example, in 2002 we
obtained the rights to another compound from teiges, BCX-4208, which is currently in the earlyaph of clinical development. We have
agreed to pay certain milestone payments for fulenelopment of these inhibitors, pay certain riogalon sales of any resulting product, and
to share in future payments received from othedtparty collaborators, if any. We can terminate #useement at any time by giving 60 d
advance notice.

Emory Universityln June 2000, we licensed intellectual propemyf Emory related to the hepatitis C polymerasgetaassociated
with hepatitis C viral infections. Under the origlrierms of the agreement, the research investigétam Emory provided us with materials
and technical insight into the target. We have egjte pay Emory royalties on sales of any resulpiraggiuct and to share in future payments
received from other third party collaborators,riffaWe can terminate this agreement at any timgi\ipg 90 days advance notice.

Patents and Proprietary Information

Our success will depend in part on our ability bbain and enforce patent protection for our prosluctethods, processes and other
proprietary technologies, preserve our trade sgcaeid operate without infringing on the proprigtaghts of other parties, both in the United
States and in other countries. We own or havegitghtertain proprietary information, proprietagghnology, issued and allowed patents and
patent applications which relate to compounds weedaveloping. We actively seek, when appropriataegtion for our products, proprietary
technology and proprietary information by mean/@&. and foreign patents, trademarks and contrbattengements. In addition, we rely
upon trade secrets and contractual arrangemeptstiect certain of our proprietary information, prietary technology and products.

As of January 31, 2005, we have been issued 24gat€nts that expire between 2009 and 2023 anddlaé to our PNP, serine
protease and neuraminidase inhibitor compoundsh&Ve licensed four additional patents and two pengatents from AECOM and IRL,
plus one patent from Emory. We have also filed miaa@plications for new processes to prepare ceRBiP inhibitors. Additionally, we have
20 U.S. patent applications pending related to Ri¢Braminidase, RNA viral polymerase, paramyxoviresraminidase, and serine protease
inhibitors. Our pending applications may not reguissued patents, and our patents may not praxsdeith sufficient protection against
competitive products or otherwise be commercialigilable.



Our success is also dependent upon the skills, latlge and experience of our scientific and techmieesonnel, none of which is
patentable. To help protect our rights, we reqgalremployees, consultants, advisors and collabosdb enter into confidentiality agreeme
which prohibit the disclosure of confidential infieation to anyone outside of our company and requiigclosure and assignment to us of
their ideas, developments, discoveries and invastibhese agreements may not provide adequatetiootéor our trade secrets, know-how
or other proprietary information in the event offamauthorized use or disclosure or the lawful tgw@ent by others of such information.

Marketing and Sales

We currently plan to market, distribute and selbftesine in the U.S. for use in treatment of T-caticers. Although our general
strategy is to rely on major marketing companiessxforldwide commercialization of most products wayndevelop, we believe that we can
manage the highly specialized oncology marketdoodesine within the U.S. Most patients with adwah€-cell malignancies in the U.S. are
treated at major referral cancer centers, and \weaxhat many of these centers will be particigatn our Phase Il trials and will thus be
familiar with forodesine if it reaches the markgowever, we lack experience in marketing, distiitbgiand selling pharmaceutical products.
Our general strategy is to rely on collaboratacgnsees or arrangements with others to providéhtomarketing, distribution and sales of
products we may develop. We may not be able tdkslisand maintain acceptable commercial arrangé&neith collaborators, licensees or
others to perform such activities.

Competition

The pharmaceutical and biotechnology industriesraemsely competitive. Many companies, includimgtéchnology, chemical and
pharmaceutical companies, are actively engagedtivitees similar to ours, including research amelopment of drugs for the treatment of
cancer, infectious, inflammatory and cardiovascdlaeases and disorders. Many of these companiessudstantially greater financial and
other resources, larger research and developradfg,sind more extensive marketing and manufagwiganizations than we do. In
addition, some of them have considerable experienpeeclinical testing, clinical trials and othegulatory approval procedures. For
example, in December 2004, Bioenvision, Inc. reegigpproval from the FDA to market Clofarabinetfo treatment of pediatric ALL. We
are currently testing forodesine in T-cell ALL ahnalve plans to initiate clinical trials in patiemigh B-cell ALL during 2005. There are also
academic institutions, governmental agencies anersesearch organizations that are conductingirelsén areas in which we are working.
They may also market commercial products, eithetheir own or through collaborative efforts.

We expect to encounter significant competitionany of the pharmaceutical products we plan to agweCompanies that complete
clinical trials, obtain required regulatory apprsvand commence commercial sales of their produsfisre their competitors may achieve a
significant competitive advantage. In addition,e@V pharmaceutical and biotechnology firms, incigdmajor pharmaceutical companies
specialized structure-based drug design compamie® announced efforts in the field of structuredohdrug design and in the fields of PNP,
hepatitis C, and tissue factor/factor Vlla.

In order to compete successfully, we must devetopnetary positions in patented drugs for thergicenarkets that have not been
satisfactorily addressed by conventional researeliegiies and, in the process, expand our expéntisteucture-based drug design. Our
products, even if successfully tested and developeg not be adopted by physicians over other misdand may not offer economically
feasible alternatives to other therapies.

Government Regulation

The FDA regulates the pharmaceutical and bioteagyoindustries in the United States, and our dargd@ates are subject to
extensive and rigorous domestic government reguiatprior to commercialization. The FDA regulasong other things, the development,
testing, manufacture, safety, efficacy, record-kegpdabeling, storage, approval, advertising, potion, sale and distribution of
pharmaceutical products. In foreign countries, praducts are also subject to extensive regulatjofoleign governments. These government
regulations will be a significant factor in the guztion and marketing of any pharmaceutical progltlzait we develop. Failure to comply with
applicable FDA and other regulatory requirementsgt stage during the regulatory process may subfet sanctions, including:
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. delays;

. warning letters

. fines;

. product recalls or seizure

. injunctions;

. penalties

. refusal of the FDA to review pending market appt@gplications or supplements to approval apploces;
. total or partial suspension of productic

. civil penalties;

. withdrawals of previously approved marketing apgiicns; anc

. criminal prosecutions

The regulatory review and approval prededengthy, expensive and uncertain. Before abtgiregulatory approvals for the
commercial sale of any products, we or our liceaseast demonstrate that our product candidatesadieeand effective for use in humans.
The approval process takes many years, substarpiehses may be incurred and significant time neagidvoted to clinical development.

Before testing potential candidates imhas, we carry out laboratory and animal studietetermine safety and biological activity.
After completing preclinical trials, we must fila investigational new drug application, includingraposal to begin clinical trials, with the
FDA. We have filed eleven investigational new dapglications to date and plan to file, or rely atufe partners to file, additional
investigational new drug applications in the futaseour potential drug candidates advance to thgef development. Thirty days after
filing an investigational new drug application, aBe | human clinical trial can start unless théFiaces a hold on the study.

Our Phase | trials are designed to determpafety in a small group of patients or healtblunteers. We also assess tolerances and the
metabolic and pharmacologic actions of our drugladates at different doses. After we complete tiitgal trials, we conduct Phase Il trials
assess safety and efficacy and establish the dpdiosa in patients. If Phase Il trials are sucagésafe or our licensees conduct Phase Il t1
to verify the results in a larger patient populatiBhase 11l trials are required for FDA approwahtarket a drug. A Phase Il trial may require
hundreds or even thousands of patients and is tis expensive to conduct. The goal in Phase tb mollect enough safety and efficacy data
to obtain FDA approval for treatment of a particudésease. For some clinical indications that apeeeially serious and for which there are
effective treatments, such as refractory cancersditional approval can be obtained following Phihgeals.

Initiation and completion of the clinidalal phases are dependent on several factorgdimg things that are beyond our control. For
example, the clinical trials are dependent on pagarollment, but the rate at which patients drinalhe study depends on:

. the size of the patient population we intend tattt
. the availability of patients

. the willingness of patients to participate; ¢

. the patients meeting the eligibility criter

Delays in planned patient enrollment mesult in increased expense and longer developtimealines.
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After completion of the clinical trial§ a product, we or our licensees must submit a diewy application to the FDA for marketing
approval before commercialization of the produtte FDA may not grant approval on a timely basisf @ll. The FDA, as a result of the
Food and Drug Administration Modernization Act &9, has six months to review and act upon licapgdications for priority therapeutics
that are for life-threatening or unmet medical ree&tandard reviews can take between one and tars,y&nd can even take longer if
significant questions arise during the review psscd he FDA may withdraw any required approvalseaobtained.

In addition to clinical development regfibns, we and our contract manufacturers andlmadéors must comply with the applicable
FDA current good manufacturing practice (“GMP”) uéagions. GMP regulations include requirementstiadgto quality control and quality
assurance as well as the corresponding mainteredimeeords and documentation. Manufacturing faesitare subject to inspection by the
FDA. Such facilities must be approved before we usathem in commercial manufacturing of our pésééproducts. We or our contract
manufacturers may not be able to comply with thaieable GMP requirements and other FDA regulateguirements. If we or our contract
manufacturers fail to comply, our business, finahcondition and results of operations will be mialey adversely affected.

Human Resources

As of February 28, 2005, we had 50 emgday of whom 37 were engaged in research and geweltt and 13 were in general and
administrative functions. Our scientific staff, @dwhom hold Ph.D. or M.D. degrees, has diversiBggerience in biochemistry,
pharmacology, X-ray crystallography, synthetic aigachemistry, computational chemistry, and meditghemistry. We consider our
relations with our employees to be satisfactory.

Scientific Advisory Board and Consultants

Our scientific advisory board is compds# five scientific advisors who are leaders int@@ of our core disciplines or who otherwise
have specific expertise in our therapeutic foceasrWe also have consulting agreements with a euaflother scientists with expertise in
our core disciplines or who are specialists in @®s or treatments on which we focus. The sciemtifivisory board meets as a group at
scheduled meetings and the consultants meet mexyedntly, on an individual basis, with our scieatffersonnel and management to discuss
our ongoing research and drug discovery and dexedop projects. The scientific advisory board caissi$ the following individuals:

Name Position

Albert F. LoBuglio, M.D. (Chairman) DirectorEmeritusand Distinguished Professor of The University Of
Alabama at Birmingham Comprehensive Cancer Ce

Gordon N. Gill, M.D. Professor of MedicinEmeritusat the University of California, San
Diego School of Medicine

Lorraine J. Gudas, Ph.D. Professor and Chairman, Department of Pharmacdlégiyl Medical
College of Cornell University, Revlon Pharmaceutiefessor of
Pharmacology and Toxicolog

Herbert A. Hauptman, Ph.D. President of the Hauptman-Woodward Medical Reselastiiute, Inc.
(formerly the Medical Foundation (Buffalo), Incand Research
Professor in Biophysical Sciences and Distinguidhexfessor in
Structural Biology at the State University of NewrK (Buffalo).
Recipient of the Nobel Prize in Chemistry (19¢

Hamilton O. Smith, M.D. Professor, Molecular Biology and Genetics Departra¢he Johns
Hopkins University School of Medicine, retired, aBdientific Director
of the Synthetic Biology and Biological Energy Gpsiat the J. Craig
Venter Institute in Rockville, Maryland. Recipiarftthe Nobel Prize in
Medicine (1978)
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The scientific advisors and the consuftame reimbursed for their expenses and receirenab cash compensation in connection with
their service and have been issued options and&res of common stock. The scientific advisorstaedconsultants are all employed by or
have consulting agreements with entities other tlrmsome of which may compete with us in the futilihe scientific advisors and the
consultants are expected to devote only a smdiilqpoof their time to our business, although noc#fietime commitment has been
established. They are not expected to participetieedy in our affairs or in the development of dechnology. Several of the institutions with
which the scientific advisors and the consultansadfiliated may adopt new regulations or polidiest limit the ability of the scientific
advisors and the consultants to consult with ug. [dhs of the services of the scientific advisord the consultants could adversely affect us
to the extent that we are pursuing research orlder®nt in areas relevant to the scientific adwsand consultants’ expertise. To the extent
members of our scientific advisory board or thestdtants have consulting arrangements with or becemployed by any of our competitc
we could be materially adversely affected.

Any inventions or processes independatiigovered by the scientific advisors or the cétasts may not become our property and
probably remain the property of such persons @uch persons’ employers. In addition, the institusiwith which the scientific advisors and
the consultants are affiliated may make availdidéeresearch services of their personnel, incluthiegscientific advisors and the consultants,
to our competitors pursuant to sponsored reseapaements. We require the scientific advisors aeccbnsultants to enter into
confidentiality agreements which prohibit the distlre of confidential information to anyone outsid@ur company and require disclosure
and assignment to us of their ideas, developmdisispveries or inventions. However, our competitoes/ gain access to trade secrets and
other proprietary information developed by us aistldsed to the scientific advisors and the coasidt

Available Information

We have available a website on the I®er®©ur address is www.biocryst.com. We makelalokd at our website our annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curmeports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those refitetl or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soreasonably practicable after we electronicédysich material with, or furnish it to, the
SEC. We also make available at our website cagfiesir audit committee charter, compensation conemitharter, corporate governance
nominating committee charter and our code of besim®nduct, which applies to all employees of ByeCas well as the members of our
Board of Directors.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our administrative offices and pijpat research facility are located in 57,350 squdeet of leased office space in Riverchase
Industrial/Research Park in Birmingham, Alabamae Tase runs through June 30, 2010 with an optideatse for an additional five years at
current market rates. We believe that our facdliiee adequate for our current operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock trades orNitisdaq National Market tier of The Nasdaq StockKeat™ under the symbol BCRX. The

following table sets forth the low and high pricéour common stock as reported by Nasdag for gaelter in 2004 and 2003:

2004 2003
Low High Low High
First quartel $ 624 % 875 82% 20
Second quarte 6.7¢% 11.2¢ 1.2¢ 4.51
Third quartel 4.37 7.5€ 2.8¢ 7.37
Fourth quarte 4,63 6.94 6.0C 9.41

The last sale price of the common stock on FebrBar2005 as reported by Nasdaq was $5.75 per.share

As of February 23, 2005, there were approximately Bolders of record of our common stock.

The Company has never paid cash dividends andraiesticipate paying cash dividends in the forabkefuture.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share)

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Statement of Operations Data
Total revenues (See attached financial statemeuls a

notes) $ 337 % 652 $ 0 $ 7,731 $ 3,31¢
Research and development exper 18,86¢ 11,52: 15,47: 13,09: 9,59(
Loss before cumulative effect of change in accagnti

principle (21,109 (12,700 (16,929 (4,98¢) (5,490
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — — — — (6,089
Net loss $ (21,109 $ (12,700 $ (16,929 $ (4,980 $ (11,579

Amounts per common shal
Loss before cumulative effect of change in accaounti

principle $ (.00 $ (72) $ (.9€) $ (2¢) $ (.32
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — — — — (.35
Basic and diluted net loss per sh $ (1.00 $ (72) $ (.9€) $ (2¢) $ (.6€)
Weighted average shares outstanding (in thous: 21,16¢ 17,70: 17,64: 17,56( 17,467

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Balance Sheet Data
Cash, cash equivalents and secur $ 28,700 $ 2573: $ 36,16 $ 52,94 $ 65,58
Total asset 32,46¢ 30,09¢ 41,30( 59,09¢ 70,82¢
Accumulated defici (125,76¢) (104,66() (91,96() (75,03)) (70,045
Total stockholder equity 29,33« 28,44 40,12¢ 56,81« 61,48:
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K eam$ certain statements of a forward-looking natigkating to future events or the future
financial performance of the Company. Such statésreme only predictions and the actual events sutes may differ materially from tt
results discussed in the forward-looking statemerdstors that could cause or contribute to sudifiedénces include those discussed below
as well as those discussed in other filings madiéyCompany with the Securities and Exchange Cesioni.

Overview

Since our inception in 1986, we have begaged in research and development activitieoagahizational efforts, including:

. identification and licensing of enzyme targe

. drug discovery

. structur-based design of drug candidat

. smal-scale synthesis of compouni

. conducting preclinical studies and clinical tri¢

. recruiting our scientific and management persor
. establishing laboratory facilities; al

. raising capital

Our revenues have generally been lintildétense fees, milestone payments, interest img@nd collaboration research and
development fees. The Company recognizes revenaecordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin N©64,Revenue RecognitidhSAB
No. 10¢"). Research and development revenue on cost-resement agreements is recognized as expensesargeih up to contractual
limits. Research and development fees, licensedeésnilestone payments are recognized as revehee the earnings process is complete,
the Company has no further continuing performartigations and has completed its performance utideterms of the agreement, in
accordance with SAB No. 104. License fees and moifespayments received under licensing agreemieatste related to future performa
are deferred and recognized as earned over thmatetl drug development period. The Company hasegetved any revenues or royalties
from the sale of licensed pharmaceutical produttould be several years, if ever, before we veilognize significant revenue from royalt
received pursuant to our license agreements ontevdirectly from product sales. Future revendemy, are likely to fluctuate substantially
from quarter to quarter.

We have incurred operating losses sincerneption. Our accumulated deficit at DecemtierZ®04 was $125.8 million. We will
require substantial expenditures relating to theeiment of our current and future drug candiddbesing the three years ended December
31, 2004, we spent 45.5% of our research and demedot expenses on contract research and developimaatliing:

. payments to consultant

. funding of research at academic institutic

. large scale synthesis and formulation of compou
. preclinical studies
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. engaging investigators to conduct clinical tri:
. hiring contract research organizations for reguiatmd clinical functions; an

. using statisticians to evaluate the results oficdintrials.

The above expenditures for contract nebeand development for our current and future adarmdidates will vary from quarter-to-
quarter depending on the status of our researclievelopment projects. For example, during thé fjusrter of 2004, we entered a Phase |l
trial for our lead drug candidate, forodesine, r@ribitor of PNP. In addition, during the fourth gtea of 2004, we initiated a Phase | trial for
forodesine in CTCL and a Phase | trial with BCX-820 healthy volunteers. As these trials progresbadditional trials are started in other
indications, our costs for clinical studies wilciease significantly. In addition, the costs assed with the manufacturing of forodesine
hydrochloride and BCX-4208 will increase as we aagd to the larger production runs required fohtminical development and additional
toxicology studies.

Changes in our existing and future reseand development and collaborative relationsifisalso impact the status of our research
and development projects. Although we may, in soages, be able to control the timing of developregpenses, in part by accelerating or
decelerating certain of these costs, many of thests will be incurred irrespective of whether we able to discover drug candidates or
obtain collaborative partners for commercializatids a result, we believe that quarter-to-quartenparisons of our financial results are not
necessarily meaningful and should not be reliechugman indication of future performance. If wé faimeet the research, clinical and
financial expectations of securities analysts amvéstors, it could have a material adverse effadhe price of our common stock.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2003

Collaborative and other research and ldpwmeent revenues decreased in 2004 to $337,000a@mpo $653,000 in the same period
year, primarily due to a payment in 2003 fro-Dimensional Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“3DP”), a whathyned subsidiary of Johnson &
Johnson, for certain rights related to complemgsiiesn inhibitors discovered during the term of oaolfaborative research agreement. Our
2004 revenue was entirely related to grants froenNhtional Institutes of Health (“NIH") for suppast our hepatitis C and tissue factor
programs, while for 2003 our revenue included &il$3,000 from the NIH.

Research and development expenses irct&2s8% to $18,868,000 for 2004 from $11,522,00R003. The increase in expenses
during 2004 was directly related to contract amdichl costs associated with the development dfi lodtour lead drug candidates during 2(
These costs primarily consisted of manufacturiogicblogy, clinical development and regulatory aacharges, which were essential to the
continuing development of these programs.

General and administrative expenses asae 14.2% to $3,212,000 in 2004 from $2,812,0@D08, primarily due to an increase in
consulting and professional fees related to compéawith section 404 of the Sarbari@sley Act of 2002 and for the strategic developne
our lead drug candidate.

Interest income for 2004 was $648,0083.8% decrease compared to $980,000 in 2003. Heiedse was due to a lower interest rate
environment in 2004.

The net loss for the year ended Decer@be2004 was $21,104,000, or $1.00 per share, caujta a net loss of $12,700,000, or $0.72
per share in 2003.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2002

Collaborative and other research and Idpmeent revenues increased in 2003 to $653,000 awedpto $0 in the same period of the
year, primarily due to a payment from 3DP for ciertigghts related to complement system inhibitdexdvered during the term of o
collaborative research agreement. In additionreuenues include $153,000 from the NIH relatedh&o$300,000 first year grant received
during 2003 for our hepatitis C inhibitor program.

14



Research and development expenses dedr2gs5% to $11,522,000 for 2003 from $15,473,002002. The decrease in expenses
during 2003 was primarily due to the costs inculigdBioCryst during 2002 to complete a Phase [Hical trial for peramivir, a drug
candidate that was discontinued in June 2002. ditiad, personnel costs were 34% lower during 2882 result of the reduction in our staff
following the termination of the peramivir program.

General and administrative expenses dserkslightly to $2,812,000 in 2003 from $2,856,00R002. In addition, as a result of the
termination of the peramivir program effective J@% 2002, we recorded a non-cash impairment [6$873,900 in 2002 related to the
influenza patents. There were no impairment chamgesrded in 2003.

Interest income for 2003 was $980,0084.8% decrease compared to $1,775,000 in 2002.dEi®ase was due to a reduction in cash
and a lower interest rate environment in 2003.

The net loss for the year ended Decer@be?003 was $12,700,000, or $0.72 per share, cadpa a net loss of $16,929,000, or $0.96
per share in 2002.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash expenditures have exceeded revesimEsthe Company’s inception. Our operations hireipally been funded through public
offerings and private placements of equity and debtrities. For example, during February 2004raised $21.4 million (approximately
$20.3 million net of expenses) through the sal®,b71,667 shares of our common stock. Other soafcemding have included the
following:

. equipment lease financin

. facility leases

. collaborative and other research and developmestatents (including licenses and options for liesi
. research grants ai

. interest income

In addition, we have attempted to contaists and reduce cash flow requirements by resgrntific equipment and facilities,
contracting with other parties to conduct certa@search and development and using consultantsxpéeEto incur additional expenses,
potentially resulting in significant losses, as eamtinue to pursue our research and developmeinitest and undertake additional preclinical
studies and clinical trials of compounds which hbgen or may be discovered. We also expect to sustantial expenses related to the
filing, prosecution, maintenance, defense and eefoent of patent and other intellectual properiynes.

The Company invests its excess cashipatyg in U.S. marketable securities from a diviesl portfolio of institutions with strong
credit ratings and in U.S. government and agenity dmd notes, and by policy, limits the amountidit exposure at any one institution.
These investments are generally not collateralametimature within three years. The Company haseatized any losses from such
investments. In addition, at December 31, 2004r@pmately $6.6 million was invested in the Mertijnch Premier Institutional Fund,
which invests primarily in commercial paper, U.8vgrnment and agency bills and notes, corporatesnoertificates of deposit and time
deposits. The Merrill Lynch Premier Institutionalriel is not insured. At December 31, 2004, our ceash equivalents and securities held-to-
maturity were $28.7 million, which included $2.1llion in certificates of deposit at two financialstitutions.

We have financed some of our equipmenthases with lease lines of credit. In July 2008 renegotiated our lease for our current
facilities, which will expire on June 30, 2010. \Wave an option to renew the lease for an additifiwalyears at the current market rate in
effect on June 30, 2010 and a one-time optionrtoiteate the lease on June 30, 2008 for a termimddie of approximately $124,000. The
lease, as amended effective July 1, 2001 for aitiadal 7,200 square feet, requires us to pay nlgmtnt starting at $33,145 per month in
July 2001 and escalating annually to a minimum4f,837 per month in the final year, plus our pta hare of operating expenses and real
estate taxes in excess of base year amounts. Asfghe lease, we have deposited a U.S. Treagayrisy in escrow for the payment of rent
and performance of other obligations specifiechlease. This pledged amount is currently $265,806&:h can be decreased by $65,000
annually throughout the term of the lease. Curyemie have approximately 14,000 square feet ofespaailable for sublease, of which 3,600
square feet are currently being leased.

15



We have not incurred any significant ¢gearrelated to new equipment or building renovatigince 2001 and currently have no plans
for any significant additional purchases or renimret.

At December 31, 2004, we had long-termraping lease obligations, which provide for aggtegninimum payments of $622,105 in
2005, $580,027 in 2006 and $535,746 in 2007. Thbkgations include the future rental of our opergfacility.

We plan to finance our needs principfibm the following:

. our existing capital resources and interest eaometthat capital
. payments under collaborative and licensing agre¢smeith corporate partners; a
. lease or loan financing and future public or prévihancing.

We believe that our available funds Wwél sufficient to fund our operations at least tigln2006. However, this is a forward looking
statement, and there may be changes that wouldicenavailable resources significantly before siroletOur long-term capital
requirements and the adequacy of our availablesfuvill depend upon many factors, including:

. the progress of our research, drug discovery amdldgment program:

. changes in existing collaborative relationsh

. our ability to establish additional collaborativeationships

. the magnitude of our research and development gnas;

. the scope and results of preclinical studies aimicall trials to identify drug candidate

. competitive and technological advanc

. the time and costs involved in obtaining regulat@pprovals

. the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining and enforcing patent clair

. our dependence on others for development and coomtization of our product candidates, ¢
. successful commercialization of our products cdestswith our licensing strateg

In 2004, our operations consumed appratehg $1,500,000 per month, but we expect thatwamthly cash used by operations will
continue to increase for the next several yearsingi2005, we plan to both expand our existingicihprograms and initiate clinical
programs for several new disease indications. Thdd#ional trials and the related manufacturirgrspnnel resources and testing required to
support these studies will consume significanttedpésources and significantly increase our exgeasid our net loss. As of December 31,
2004, we had $28.7 million in cash, cash equivaland securities. We raised an additional $23.Bomigross (approximately $22.7 million
net of expenses) of capital during February 200&rtwide the resources necessary to continue thelamment of our existing programs,
while prudently maintaining our cash position. W@ect our monthly burn rate to increase to appraxaty $2 million during 2005, as our
lead candidates advance through the clinical tgdaned for 2005. This monthly burn rate could@ase more as the year progresses and in
future years depending on many factors, includimgadbility to raise additional capital, the progred our current and proposed clinical trials
for both forodesine and BCX-4208, and the progoessi our discovery programs.
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We will be required to raise additionapital to complete the development and commereitidim of our current product candidates.
Additional funding, whether through additional satd securities or collaborative or other arrangetsith corporate partners or from other
sources, may not be available when needed or orstacceptable to us. The issuance of preferredromon stock or convertible securities,
with terms and prices significantly more favorathlan those of the currently outstanding commonkstoauld have the effect of diluting or
adversely affecting the holdings or rights of oxiséng stockholders. In addition, collaborativesgmgements may require us to transfer ce
material rights to such corporate partners. Insigfit funds may require us to delay, scale-baaNiorinate certain of our research and
development programs.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we dbpaaticipate in transactions that generate refatiqps with unconsolidated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entities often referred &irastured finance or special purpose entitie®ES’),which would have been established
the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet ageaments or other contractually narrow or limitedpgmses. As of December 31, 2004, we are
not involved in any material unconsolidated SPBféibalance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

In the table below, we set forth our eoéable and legally binding obligations and futcoenmitments and obligations related to alll
contracts that we are likely to continue regardtégbie fact that they are cancelable as of Dece®be2004. Some of the amounts we
include in this table are based on managemeniimatgts and assumptions about these obligationsidimg their duration, the possibility of
renewal, anticipated actions by third parties, athetr factors. Because these estimates and assmsipiie necessarily subjective, the
obligations we will actually pay in future period®y vary from those reflected in the table.

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating Lease Obligatiol $ 312923 % 622,10 $ 1,66155 $ 84557 $ 0
Purchase Obligations ( 8,016,51. 6,680,26. 736,25( 600,00( 0
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on the
Compan’s Balance Sheet Under GA/ 300,00t 0 0 0 300,00(
Total $ 11,44574 $ 7,302,360 $ 2,397,80: $ 1,44557. $ 300,00(

(1) Purchase obligations include commitments relatedinical development, manufacturing and reseaprations and other significant
purchase commitment

Critical Accounting Policies

We have established various accountidigipe that govern the application of accountinmgiples generally accepted in the United
States, which were utilized in the preparationwffinancial statements. Certain accounting paigiezolve significant judgments and
assumptions by management that have a materiatinopahe carrying value of certain assets andliligs; management considers such
accounting policies to be critical accounting pelc The judgments and assumptions used by managamecbased on historical experience
and other factors, which are believed to be reddenader the circumstances. Because of the nafuhe judgments and assumptions made
by management, actual results could differ frons¢hgdgments and estimates, which could have ari@atapact on the carrying values of
assets and liabilities and the results of operation
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We believe the following critical accoingt policies affect our more significant judgmeatsl estimates used in the preparation of our
financial statements.

Revenue Recoghnitio

The Company recognizes revenue in acooalwith SAB No. 104. Research and developmentween cost-reimbursement
agreements is recognized as expenses are incupéad contractual limits. Research and developrfess, license fees and milestone
payments are recognized as revenue when the eanpiogess is complete, the Company has no furtirgimeiing performance obligations
and has completed its performance under the tefithee @greement, in accordance with SAB No. 10dehse fees and milestone payments
received under licensing agreements that are tetat@uture performance are deferred and recogragegarned over the estimated drug
development period. Revisions to revenue or pegfiimates as a result of changes in the estimatepd&velopment period are recognized
prospectively.

Valuation of Financial Instruments

We carry our held-to-maturity securite#gsamortized cost, as adjusted for other-than-teargaleclines in market value. In determining
if and when a decline in market value below amedizost is other-tharemporary, we evaluate the market conditions ahdrdtey measure
for our held-to-maturity investments. Future adeerkanges in market conditions could result indess an inability to recover the carrying
value of the held-to-maturity investments that maybe reflected in an investment’s current cagwalue, thereby possibly requiring an
impairment charge in the future. We have not irediiany other-than-temporary declines in marketevéthat would require an impairment
charge.

Deferred Taxes

We have not had taxable income sincerpmation and, therefore, we have not paid anyrimetax. We have deferred tax assets
related to net operating loss carryforwards andaeeh and development credit carryforwards, an@ hegorded a valuation allowance to
reduce our deferred tax assets to the amountdimabie likely than not to be realized. While wedawensidered future taxable income and
ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning stragemi@ssessing the need for the valuation allowandbe event we were to determine that
we would be able to realize the deferred tax assetee future in excess of the net recorded amamadjustment to the deferred tax asset
would increase income in the period such deterriunatas made. Likewise, should we determine thatwaeld not be able to realize all or
part of the net deferred tax asset in the futureadjustment to the deferred tax asset would begeldao income in the period such
determination was made. For the current year, tirafany has recorded a valuation allowance equivtdethe amount of deferred tax ass

Patents and License

Patents and licenses are recorded abodsamortized on a straight-line basis over thsfimated useful lives or 20 years, whichever is
lesser. These costs are reviewed periodically tor@ance with Statement of Financial Accountingh8éads No. 144Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Loi-Lived Assetfo determine any impairment that needs to be razegnFor 2004, we recognized an
impairment charge of $8,339.

Research and Development Expent

Major components of R&D expenses cordfigtersonnel costs, including salaries and benelitsical, regulatory and toxicology
services performed by contract research organiza(iGRO’s), materials and supplies, and overhdadaions consisting of various
administrative and facilities related costs. Werghaclinical and preclinical study costs to expemben incurred, consistent with Statemer
Financial Accounting Standards No.Atcounting for Research and Development Costese costs are a significant component of R&D
expenses. Most of our clinical and preclinicabl#ts are performed by third-party CRO’s. We acaross for studies performed by CRO’s
over the service periods specified in the contrants adjust our estimates, if required, based wpomn-going review of the level of services
actually performed by the CRO.
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Risk Factors

An investment in our stock involves a high degfa&sk. You should consider carefully the followigks, along with all of the other
information included in our other filings with ttgecurities and Exchange Commission, before dectdibgy our common stock. Additional
risks and uncertainties not currently known to ushat we currently deem to be immaterial may atapair our business operations. If we
are unable to prevent events that have a negaffeetdrom occurring, then our business may suffgative events are likely to decrease
our revenue, increase our costs, make our finaneslilts poorer and/or decrease our financial sgm and may cause our stock price to
decline. In that case, you may lose all or a pdryaur investment in our common stock.

Risks Relating to Our Business
We have incurred substantial losses since our inth@p in 1986, expect to continue to incur such lessand may never be profitable

Since our inception in 1986, we havebe®n profitable. We expect to incur additional éssfor the foreseeable future, and our losses
could increase as our research and developmemtseffiamgress. As of December 31, 2004, our accumualiideficit was approximately $125.8
million. To become profitable, we must successfdiiywelop drug candidates, enter into profitableagrents with other parties and our drug
candidates must receive regulatory approval. Wibese other parties must then successfully manufaeind market our drug candidates. It
could be several years, if ever, before we receiyalties from any future license agreements oemeres directly from product sales.

If we fail to obtain additional financing, we mayéunable to complete thdevelopment and commercialization of our producinclidates
or continue our research and development programs.

To date, we have financed our operatgimarily from sale of our equity securities armatlesser extent, revenues from collabora:
and interest. In 2004, our operations consumedoappately $1,500,000 per month, but we expect thiatmonthly cash used by operations
will continue to increase for the next several ge@uring 2005, we plan to both expand our existilngcal programs and initiate clinical
programs for several new disease indications. Thdddional trials and the related manufacturirgrspnnel resources and testing required to
support these studies will consume significanttedpésources and significantly increase our exgeasid our net loss.

As of December 31, 2004, we had $28.Taniin cash, cash equivalents and securities. &&2d an additional $23.9 million gross
(approximately $22.7 million net of expenses) gfital during February 2005 to provide the resourmsessary to continue the development
of our existing programs, while prudently maintamiour cash position. We expect our monthly bute ta increase to approximately $2
million during 2005, as our lead candidates advahamugh the clinical trials planned for 2005. Thisnthly burn rate could increase more as
the year progresses and in future years dependimgamy factors, including our ability to raise aatdial capital, the progress of our current
and proposed clinical trials for both forodesind &CX-4208, and the progression of our discovepgpms. Our long-term capital
requirements and the adequacy of our availablesfuvill depend upon many factors, including:

. the progress of our research, drug discovery amdldgment program:

. changes in existing collaborative relationsh

. our ability to establish additional collaborativeationships

. the magnitude of our research and development gnasg;

. the scope and results of preclinical studies aimicall trials to identify drug candidate

. competitive and technological advanc

. the time and costs involved in obtaining regulat@pprovals

. the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtimaintaining and enforcing patent clair
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. our dependence on others for development and cocmatization of our product candidates; ¢

. successful commercialization of our products cdestswith our licensing strateg

We will be required to raise additionapital to complete the development and commereititin of our current product candidates.
Additional funding, whether through additional satd securities or collaborative or other arrangetsigith corporate partners or from other
sources, may not be available when needed or orstacceptable to us. The issuance of preferredromon stock or convertible securities,
with terms and prices significantly more favorathlan those of the currently outstanding commonkstoauld have the effect of diluting or
adversely affecting the holdings or rights of oxiséng stockholders. In addition, collaborativesgmgements may require us to transfer ce
material rights to such corporate partners. Insigffit funds may require us to delay, scale-baaliorinate certain of our research and
development programs.

We have not commercialized any products or techiggds and our future revenue generation is uncertain

We have not yet commercialized any présloc technologies, and we may never be able &od®@ur revenue from collaborative
agreements is dependent upon the status of odirpcatand clinical programs. If we fail to advanthese programs to the point of being
to enter into successful collaborations, we will receive any future milestone or other collabepayments.

Any future revenue directly from prodseies would depend on our ability to successfudipglete clinical studies, obtain regulatory
approvals, manufacture, market and commercialigeapproved drugs.

If our development collaborations with other partdail, the development cour drug candidates will be delayed or stopped

We rely heavily upon other parties fomyp@mportant stages of our drug development prograncluding:

. discovery of proteins that cause or enable biokdgieactions necessary for the progression of iseade or disorder, called
enzyme target:

. licensing or design of enzyme inhibitors for deyefent as drug candidate

. execution of some preclinical studies and-stage development for our compounds and drug cated

. management of our clinical trials, including medliceonitoring and data manageme

. management of our regulatory function; ¢

. manufacturing, sales, marketing and distributioowfdrug candidate

Our failure to engage in successful datations at any one of these stages would grampgct our business. If we do not license
enzyme targets or inhibitors from academic indting or from other biotechnology companies on atat#e terms, our product development
efforts would suffer. Similarly, if the contractsearch organizations that conduct our initial te-stage clinical trials or manage our
regulatory function breached their obligations $o this would delay or prevent the developmentufdyug candidates.

Even more critical to our success isahility to enter into successful collaborations ttoe late-stage clinical development, regulatory
approval, manufacturing, marketing, sales anditigion of our drug candidates. Our general stiatedgo rely upon other parties for all of
these steps so that we can focus exclusively okdh@reas of our expertise. For some smaller mcéwkets, we may perform these steps
ourselves and outsource those functions where wetbave the internal expertise. This heavy rekampon third parties for these critical
functions presents several risks, including:
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. these contracts may expire or the other partiéisg@ontract may terminate the

. our partners may choose to pursue alternative tdabies, including those of our competitc

. we may have disputes with a partner that could teditigation or arbitration

. our partners may not devote sufficient capitalezources towards our drug candida

. our partners may not comply with applicable goveentregulatory requirements; a

. our manufacturing partners may not be able to nmeartufe our compounds in the quantities requirett tie specifications

required by the regulatory authoriti¢

Any problems encountered with our cur@nfuture partners could delay or prevent the igmaent of our compounds, which would
severely affect our business, because if our comg®do not reach the market in a timely manneat afl, we may never receive any
milestone, product or royalty payments.

If the clinical trials of our drug candidates failpur drug candidates wilnot be marketed, which would result in a completesance of
product relatecrevenue

To receive the regulatory approvals neagsfor the sale of our drug candidates, we odioansees must demonstrate through
preclinical studies and clinical trials that eachglcandidate is safe and effective. If we or @zerisees are unable to demonstrate that our
drug candidates are safe and effective, our dradidates will not receive regulatory approval antll mot be marketed, which would result
a complete absence of product related revenueclitfieal trial process is complex and uncertainc&®ese of the cost and duration of clinical
trials, we may decide to discontinue developmermgrotiuct candidates that are either unlikely torsgood results in the trials or unlikely to
help advance a product to the point of a meaningdlihboration. Positive results from preclinicaldies and early clinical trials do not ens
positive results in clinical trials designed topérapplication for regulatory approval, called @ial clinical trials. We may suffer significant
setbacks in pivotal clinical trials, even afterlieaiclinical trials show promising results. Any efir drug candidates may produce undesirable
side effects in humans. These side effects couldecas or regulatory authorities to interrupt, delahalt clinical trials of a drug candidate.
These side effects could also result in the FDfoogign regulatory authorities refusing to apprtive drug candidate for any targeted
indications. We, our licensees, the FDA or foraiggulatory authorities may suspend or terminataaai trials at any time if we or they
believe the trial participants face unacceptabbdtheisks. Clinical trials may fail to demonstrditat our drug candidates are safe or effective.

Clinical trials are lengthy and expensiée or our licensees incur substantial expenseafat devote significant time to, preclinical
testing and clinical trials, yet cannot be certhit the tests and trials will ever result in tieenenercial sale of a product. For example, clin
trials require adequate supplies of drug and deffiqatient enrollment. Delays in patient enrolfinean result in increased costs and longer
development times. Even if we or our licenseeseassfally complete clinical trials for our produetndlidates, we or our licensees might not
file the required regulatory submissions in a tymalanner and may not receive regulatory approvahie drug candidate.

If we or our licensees do not obtain and maintaioernmental approvals foour products under development, we or our partnerdl not
be able to sell these potential products, which Websignificantly harm our business because we wiceive no revenue

We or our licensees must obtain reguasmproval before marketing or selling our futuragiproducts. If we or our licensees are
unable to receive regulatory approval and do nakatar sell our future drug products, we will neveceive any revenue from such product
sales. In the United States, we or our partnerg phtain FDA approval for each drug that we intemdommercialize. The FDA approval
process is typically lengthy and expensive, and@g is never certain. Products distributed abraadalso subject to foreign government
regulation. The FDA or foreign regulatory agendiase not approved any of our drug candidates. lbmaur licensees fail to obtain
regulatory approval we will be unable to market aali our future drug products. We have severaf gmoducts in various stages of
preclinical and clinical development; however, we anable to determine when, if ever, any of th@seducts will be commercially available.
Because of the risks and uncertainties in biopheeutécal development, our drug candidates could gagignificantly longer time to gain
regulatory approval than we expect or may nevear gpproval.
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If the FDA delays regulatory approval of our drigndidates, our management’s credibility, our corgfsavalue and our operating results
may suffer. Even if the FDA or foreign regulatogeacies approve a drug candidate, the approvaliméythe indicated uses for a drug
candidate and/or may require post-marketing studies

The FDA regulates, among other things,réicord keeping and storage of data pertainipgtential pharmaceutical products. We
currently store most of our preclinical researctadsd our facility. While we do store duplicate @spof most of our clinical data offsite, we
could lose important preclinical data if our fagilincurs damage. If we get approval to marketpmatential products, whether in the United
States or internationally, we will continue to hibjgct to extensive regulatory requirements. Theqairements are wide ranging and govern,
among other things:

. adverse drug experience reporting regulati

. product promaotion

. product manufacturing, including good manufactuingctice requirements; al
. product changes or modificatior

Our failure to comply with existing ortfwe regulatory requirements, or our loss of, @andes to, previously obtained approvals, could
have a material adverse effect on our businesaibecae will not receive product or royalty reveniiege or our licensees do not receive
approval of our products for marketing.

In June 1995, we notified the FDA thatsubmitted incorrect data for our Phase Il studieBCX-34 applied to the skin for cutaneous
T-cell lymphoma and psoriasis. The FDA inspectethuidovember 1995 and issued us a List of Inspeati®bservations, Form FDA 483,
which cited our failure to follow good clinical priéces. The FDA also inspected us in June 1996 fddies was on the two 1995 Phase |l
dose-ranging studies of topical BCX-34 for the tmgant of cutaneous Tell lymphoma and psoriasis. As a result of theegtigation, the FD.
issued us a Form FDA 483, which cited our failaréallow good clinical practices. We are no londereloping BCX-34; however, as a
consequence of these two investigations, our oggad future clinical studies may receive increasadtiny, which may delay the
regulatory review process.

We may be unable to establish sales, marketing distribution capabilities necessary to successfudlynmmercialize products we may
successfully develo

We currently have no marketing capabdityd no direct or thirgharty sales or distribution capabilities. If we sessfully develop a dn
candidate and decide to commercialize it ourselatdger than relying on third parties, as we culyeintend to do in the United States for
forodesine hydrochloride, we may be unable to éistamarketing, sales and distribution capabilitiesessary to commercialize and gain
market acceptance for that product.

If our drug candidates do not achieve broad marlatceptance, our business mnever become profitable

Our drug candidates may not gain the etaaikceptance required for us to be profitable évigrey successfully complete initial and
final clinical trials and receive approval for shlgthe FDA or foreign regulatory agencies. Therdegf market acceptance of any drug
candidates that we or our partners develop wilkdelpon a number of factors, including:

. cos-effectiveness of our drug candidat

. their safety and effectiveness relative to altémeaireatments

. reimbursement policies of government and t-party payers; an
. marketing and distribution support for our drug didates.
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Physicians, patients, payers or the natdiemmunity in general may not accept or use oug @¢andidates even after the FDA or
foreign regulatory agencies approve the drug catesd If our drug candidates do not achieve sicanifi market acceptance, we will not have
enough revenues to become profitable.

We face intense competition, and if we are unaldecompete effectively, the demand for our produdtgny, may be reduced

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical tdes are highly competitive and subject to rapid substantial technological change. We
face, and will continue to face, competition in titensing of desirable disease targets, licensfrgesirable drug candidates, and
development and marketing of our product candidimtas academic institutions, government agenciesgarch institutions and
biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies. Cotiretinay also arise from, among other things:

. other drug development technologi
. methods of preventing or reducing the incidencdisdéase, including vaccines; a
. new small molecule or other classes of therapegfamnts

Developments by others may render our product daneks or technologies obsolete or noncompetitive.

We are performing research on or develppiroducts for the treatment of several disordeisiding T-cell mediated disorders (T-cell
cancers, psoriasis, and rheumatoid arthritis),icaagcular, oncology, and hepatitis C, and theeesamumber of competitors to products in
research pipeline. If one or more of our compeditproducts or programs are successful, the méoketur products may be reduced or
eliminated.

Compared to us, many of our competitois potential competitors have substantially greater

. capital resource

. research and development resources, including peetand technolog)
. regulatory experienct

. preclinical study and clinical testing experien

. manufacturing and marketing experience;

. production facilities

Any of these competitive factors could reduce dedrfan our products.

If we fail to adequately protect or enforce our gltectual property rights osecure rights to patents of others, the value obsk rights
would diminish

Our success will depend in part on oulitgland the abilities of our licensors to obtgiatent protection for our products, methods,
processes and other technologies to preserveane srecrets, and to operate without infringingpttegrietary rights of third parties. If we or
our partners are unable to adequately protectforemour intellectual property rights for our pumtis, methods, processes and other
technologies, the value of the drug candidateswvtiedicense to derive revenue would diminish. Aidaially, if our products, methods,
processes and other technologies infringe the figpy rights of other parties, we could incur gahsal costs. The U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office has issued to us a number of pagnts for our various inventions and we havéderlsed several patents from various
institutions. We have filed additional patent apations and provisional patent applications with thS. Patent and Trademark Office. We
have filed a number of corresponding foreign pasgmiications and intend to file additional foreimd U.S. patent applications, as
appropriate. We cannot assure you as to:
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. the degree and range of protection any patentsaffidtd against competitors with similar produc
. if and when patents will issue;

. whether or not others will obtain patents claimaggpects similar to those covered by our patenicgifuns.

If the U.S. Patent and Trademark Offipbalds patents issued to others or if the U.S.riRated Trademark Office grants patent
applications filed by others, we may have to:

. obtain licenses or redesign our products or prasessavoid infringemen
. stop using the subject matter claimed in thosenpsiter
. pay damages

We may initiate, or others may bring agaus, litigation or administrative proceedingsited to intellectual property rights, including
proceedings before the U.S. Patent and TrademditeOANny judgment adverse to us in any litigatmmother proceeding arising in
connection with a patent or patent application douhaterially and adversely affect our businessfaial condition and results of operations.
In addition, the costs of any such proceeding magubstantial whether or not we are successful.

Our success is also dependent upon ilig, gkowledge and experience, none of which ieptable, of our scientific and technical
personnel. To help protect our rights, we requilreraployees, consultants, advisors and collabeosatwenter into confidentiality agreements
that prohibit the disclosure of confidential infation to anyone outside of our company and regligelosure and assignment to us of their
ideas, developments, discoveries and inventionss&lagreements may not provide adequate protdotiour trade secrets, know-how or
other proprietary information in the event of amauthorized use or disclosure or the lawful develept by others of such information, an
any of our proprietary information is disclosedr business will suffer because our revenues deppod our ability to license our technolc
and any such events would significantly impairth&ie of such a license.

If we fail to retain our existing key personnel dail to attract and retainadditional key personnel, the development of ouudrcandidates
and the expansion of our business will be delayedtmpped

We are highly dependent upon our sen@nagement and scientific team, the loss of whaseéces might impede the achievement of
our development and commercial objectives. Conipatfor key personnel with the experience that eauire is intense and is expected to
continue to increase. Our inability to attract aethin the required number of skilled and expegehnmanagement, operational and scientific
personnel, will harm our business because we by these personnel for many critical functionsaf business. In addition, we rely on
members of our scientific advisory board and cdmsi$ to assist us in formulating our researchdmatlopment strategy. All of the memb
of the scientific advisory board and all of our soliants are otherwise employed and each such nreankensultant may have commitments
to other entities that may limit their availability us.

If users of our drug products are not reimbursedrfose, future sales of oudrug products will decline

The lack of reimbursement for the usewfproduct candidates by hospitals, clinics, pasi@r doctors will harm our business.
Medicare, Medicaid, health maintenance organizatamd other third-party payers may not authorizetiberwise budget for the
reimbursement of our products. Governmental ard{barty payers are increasingly challenging thegsrcharged for medical products and
services. We cannot be sure that third-party payerdd view our product candidates as oef$ective, that reimbursement will be availabl
consumers or that reimbursement will be sufficterdllow our product candidates to be marketed comapetitive basis. Changes in
reimbursement policies, or attempts to containscwsthe health care industry could limit or redtreimbursement for our product candidates
and would materially and adversely affect our besi because future product sales would declinevanslould receive less product or
royalty revenue.
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If we face clinical trial liability claims relatedo the use or misuse of oicompounds in clinical trials, our management’s timveill be
diverted and we will incur litigation costs

We face an inherent business risk ofilitgtrlaims in the event that the use or misusewf compounds results in personal injury or
death. We have not experienced any clinical tigdility claims to date, but we may experience ¢ghelaims in the future. After commercial
introduction of our products we may experiencedgsdue to product liability claims. We currentlyimain clinical trial liability insurance
coverage in the amount of $5.0 million per occuceeand $5.0 million in the aggregate, with an add#l $2.0 million potentially available
under our umbrella policy. The insurance policy maybe sufficient to cover claims that may be magiainst us. Clinical trial liability
insurance may not be available in the future orptable terms, if at all. Any claims against ugareless of their merit, could materially and
adversely affect our financial condition, becausgdtion related to these claims would strain fisancial resources in addition to consuming
the time and attention of our management.

If our computer systems fail, our business will $ef

Our drug development activities dependhensecurity, integrity and performance of the pater systems supporting them, and the
failure of our computer systems could delay ougdiavelopment efforts. We currently store mostwfreclinical and clinical data at our
facility. Duplicate copies of most critical dataeatored offsite in a bank vault. Any significant degradatiarfailure of our computer syster
could cause us to inaccurately calculate or losalata. Loss of data could result in significaniagle in our drug development process and
any system failure could harm our business andabipers.

If, because of our use of hazardous materials, vigate any environmentacontrols or regulations that apply to such materialwe may
incur substantial costs and expenses in our remeidia efforts

Our research and development involvestimtrolled use of hazardous materials, chemiaadsvarious radioactive compounds. We are
subject to federal, state and local laws and reéigms governing the use, storage, handling andodiof these materials and some waste
products. Accidental contamination or injury fronese materials could occur. In the event of andeatj we could be liable for any damages
that result and any liabilities could exceed osoregces. Compliance with environmental laws andleg@ns could require us to incur
substantial unexpected costs, which would matgraaid adversely affect our results of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock
Our stock price is likely to be highly volatile artle value of your investment could decline sigoditly

The market prices for securities of bititgology companies in general have been highlyti®land may continue to be highly volatile
in the future. Moreover, our stock price has flated frequently, and these fluctuations are oftarrelated to our financial results. For the
twelve months ended December 31, 2004, the 52-vawje of the market price of our stock was fron8%40 $11.25 per share. The
following factors, in addition to other risk facsodescribed in this section, may have a significaptct on the market price of our common
stock:

. announcements of technological innovations or nemdycts by us or our competito

. developments or disputes concerning patents origtapy rights;

. status of new or existing licensing or collaboratagreement:

. we or our licensees achieving or failing to achidegelopment milestone

. publicity regarding actual or potential medicaluiésrelating to products under development byrusus competitors
. regulatory developments in both the United Statekfareign countries

. public concern as to the safety of pharmaceuticzadycts;
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. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults;

. changes in financial estimates or recommendatigrseburities analyst:
. economic and other external factors or other disagir crises; an
. perioc-to-period fluctuations in our financial resul

Because stock ownership is concentrated, you arfteoinvestors will haveminimal influence on stockholder decisions

As of December 31, 2004, our directoxgcative officers and some principal stockholders tneir affiliates beneficially owned
approximately 35.9% (directors and officers, togethith their relevant affiliates owned 30.2%) ofr @utstanding common stock and
common stock equivalents. As a result, these hsldfeacting together, are able to significantlffuence matters requiring stockholder
approval, including the election of directors. To@centration of ownership may delay, defer oven¢ a change in our control.

We have anti-takeover provisions in our corporateacter documents that may result in outcomes withieh you do not agree

Our board of directors has the authdotissue up to 3,178,500 shares of undesignatddrped stock and to determine the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions of thdsees without further vote or action by our stodkkes. The rights of the holders of any
preferred stock that may be issued in the futurg attversely affect the rights of the holders of owon stock. The issuance of preferred sf
could make it more difficult for third parties toguire a majority of our outstanding voting stock.

In addition, our certificate of incorptican provides for staggered terms for the membéteeboard of directors and supermajority
approval of the removal of any member of the badrdirectors and prevents our stockholders fronmgdby written consent. Our certificate
also requires supermajority approval of any amemdrogthese provisions. These provisions and gihevisions of our by-laws and of
Delaware law applicable to us could delay or makeendifficult a merger, tender offer or proxy casttevolving us.

In June 2002, our board of directors &eld@ stockholder rights plan and, pursuant therssaed preferred stock purchase rights
(“Rights™) to the holders of our common stock. TRights have certain anti-takeover effects. If taggd, the Rights would cause substantial
dilution to a person or group of persons who aegumore than 15% (19.9% for William W. FeatheripngilDirector who owned
approximately 11% as of February 23, 2005, but @ymere than 15% at the time the Rights were pptace) of our common stock on ter
not approved by the board of directors.

We have never paid dividends on our common stocH do not anticipate doing so in the foreseeableui

We have never paid cash dividends orstagk. We currently intend to retain all futureréags, if any, for use in the operation of our
business. Accordingly, we do not anticipate payiagh dividends on our common stock in the forededature.

Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This discussion contains forward-lookstgtements, which are subject to risks and unceigai These forward-looking statements can
generally be identified by the use of words suctmaey,” “will,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “articipates,” “expects,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “potential,” the negative of these werar similar expressions. Statements that desoribéuture plans, strategies, intentions,
expectations, objectives, goals or prospects aefalward-looking statements. Discussions contgitihese forward-looking statements are
principally contained in “Management’s Discussiar &nalysis of Financial Condition and Results gieations” above, as well as any
amendments we make to those sections in filingls thié SEC.
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These statements reflect our current sieith respect to future events and are basedsamgsions and subject to risks and
uncertainties which may cause our actual resutisppmance or achievements to be materially diffefeom any future results, performances
or achievements expressed or implied by the ford@alling statements. Given these uncertainties,sfemuld not place undue reliance on
these forward-looking statements. We discuss métiyese risks in greater detail in “Risk Factol$o, these forward-looking statements
represent our estimates and assumptions only tag afate of this document.

You should read this discussion compjedeld with the understanding that our actual futeseilts may be materially different from
what we expect. We may not update these forwarklihgostatements, even though our situation may gaamthe future. We qualify all of
our forward-looking statements by these cautiostayements.

7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK.

The primary objective of our investmeatidties is to preserve principal while maximizittge income we receive from our investme
without significantly increasing our risk. We irste2xcess cash principally in U.S. marketable s&esifrom a diversified portfolio of
institutions with strong credit ratings and in UgBvernment and agency bills and notes, and byydlmit the amount of credit exposure at
any one institution. Some of the securities we shwe may have market risk. This means that a chamgrevailing interest rates may cause
the principal amount of the investment to fluctudte minimize this risk, we schedule our investnseinthave maturities that coincide with
our expected cash flow needs, thus avoiding thd teeedeem an investment prior to its maturityedétccordingly, we believe we have no
material exposure to interest rate risk arisingnfimur investments. Therefore, no quantitative tabdisclosure is provided.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2004 2003
Assets
Cash and cash equivale $ 8,838,46: $ 8,348,00:
Securities hel-to-maturity 14,334,63 11,680,07
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 699,28: 675,90
Total current asse 23,872,37 20,703,98
Securities hel-to-maturity 5,530,45! 5,704,39!
Furniture and equipment, n 2,817,15 3,507,70!
Patents and licenses, less accumulated amortizati$®,934 in 2004 and $955 in 20 248,58¢ 179,46:
Total asset $ 32,468,57 $  30,095,55
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payabl $ 1,970,44. $ 640,34¢
Accrued expense 563,96 467,69(
Accrued vacatiol 299,95! 240,37
Total current liabilities 2,834,35! 1,348,41.
Deferred revenu 300,00( 300,00(
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock: shares authori:- 5,000,00C
Series A Convertible Preferred stock, $.01 pareadhares authorized - 1,800,000;
shares issued and outstand- none
Series B Junior Participating Preferred stock, $.08r value; shares authorize?1-,500;
shares issued and outstand- none
Common stock, $.01 par value; shares authoriz&d008,000; shares issued and outstanding -

21,758,287 2004; 17,871,28- 2003 217,58 178,71
Additional paic-in capital 154,880,52 132,928,20
Accumulated defici (125,763,89) (104,659,77)

Total stockholder equity 29,334,21 28,447,14
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 3246857 $  30,09555

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:
Collaborative and other research and developi

Total revenue
Expenses:
Research and developmt
General and administrati
Impairment of patents and licens
Total expense

Loss from operation
Interest and other incon

Net loss
Basic and diluted net loss per common sh

Weighted average shares outstanc

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

$ 336,90: $ 653,25 $ —

336,90: 653,25! —
18,868,11 11,521,98 15,473,49
3,212,311 2,811,60! 2,855,80:
8,33¢ — 373,90(
22,088,76 14,333,58 18,703,19

(21,751,86)  (13,680,33)  (18,703,19)
647,74% 980,24 1,774,52.

$ (21,104,12) $ (12,700,08) $ (16,928,67)

$ 1.00 $ (729 $ (.96)

21,165,31 17,703,44 17,642,74
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STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at December 31, 20C

Employee stock purchase plan sales, 50,127 s
Stocl-based compensation expel

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20C

Exercise of stock options, 186,228 shares
Employee stock purchase plan sales, 27,964 s
Stocl-based compensation expel

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 20C

Sale of common stock, 3,571,667 sh

Exercise of stock options, 283,636 shares
Employee stock purchase plan sales, 31,695 s
Stocl-based compensation expel

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2004

See accompanying notes to financial statements

Additional Total Stock-
Common Paid-in Accumulated Holders’
Stock Capital Deficit Equity
$ 176,07( 131,668,66 $ (75,031,02) $ 56,813,71
501 122,08( — 122,58:
— 120,19( — 120,19(
— — (16,928,67) (16,928,67)
176,57: 131,910,93 (91,959,69) 40,127,81
1,862 877,19¢ — 879,06(
28C 20,39¢ — 20,67¢
— 119,67¢ — 119,67¢
— — (12,700,08) (12,700,08)
178,71 132,928,20 (104,659,77) 28,447,14
35,71 20,244,13 — 20,279,85
2,83¢ 1,077,50! — 1,080,33!
317 118,26( — 118,57
— 512,42 — 512,42
— — (21,104,12) (21,104,12)
$ 217,58: 154,880,52 $ (125,763,89) $ 29,334,21
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Operating activities:
Net loss $ (21,104,12) $ (12,700,08) $ (16,928,67)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 966,47( 1,101,311 1,246,41
Impairment of patents and licens 8,33¢ — 373,90(
Amortization of patents and licens 2,97¢ 20z 201
Non-monetary compensation cc 512,42° 119,67¢ 120,19(
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (23,377 (193,28) (66,065
Accounts payabl 1,330,009 384,31 (361,549
Accrued expense 96,27: 24,16¢ (688,769
Accrued vacatiol 59,58: 67,357 (59,710
Net cash used in operating activitie (18,151,33) (11,196,34) (16,364,05)
Investing activities:
Purchases of furniture and equipm (275,919 (51,729 (407,88()
Purchases of patents and licen (80,449 (82,140 (128,599
Purchases of marketable securi (18,879,23) (13,187,90) (11,706,28)
Maturities of marketable securiti 16,398,62 21,690,77 22,506,09
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (2,836,96) 8,369,00! 10,263,33
Financing activities:
Sale of common stock, net of issuance ¢ 20,279,85 — —
Exercise of stock optior 1,080,33! 879,06( —
Employee stock purchase plan stock s 118,57 20,67¢ 122,58:
Net cash provided by financing activities 21,478,76 899,73¢ 122,58:
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: 490,46: (1,927,59) (5,978,14)
Cash and equivalents at beginning of \ 8,348,00: 10,275,60 16,253,74
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye: $ 8,838,46. $ 8,348,00. $ 10,275,60

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - Accounting Policies
The Company

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Delana@rporation (the “Company”), is a biotechnologynpany focused on designing, optimizing
and developing novel small molecule drugs thatlblay enzymes essential for cancer, cardiovaseudrautoimmune diseases and viral
infections. The Company has four research projaatifferent stages of development from early disggg to an ongoing Phase |l trial of the
Company’s most advanced drug candidate, foroddsideochloride (“BCX-1777"). While the prospects ®project may increase as the
project advances to the next stage of developragmipject can be terminated at any stage of dewedop Until the Company generates
revenues from either a research project or an apgrproduct, its ability to continue research petges dependent upon its ability to raise
funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company generally considers cashvetgrits to be all cash held in money market acsboninvestments in debt instruments with
maturities of three months or less at the timeuwtpase in accordance with Statement of Finanaiab@nting Standards No. 9Statement ¢
Cash Flowg“Statement No. 95”).

Securities Hel-to-Maturity

The Company is required to classify deid equity securities as held-to-maturity, avadafiolr-sale or trading. The appropriateness of
each classification is reassessed at each repalditeg As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Coynglassified all debt and equity
securities as held-to-maturity. The only disposisi@f securities classified as held-to-maturitated to actual maturities or securities called
prior to their maturity. At December 31, 2004 a2, respectively, securities held-to-maturity lio$19,865,083 and $17,384,478
consisted of U.S. Treasury and Agency securitiesethat amortized cost totaling $17,775,804 an8, $41,523, respectively, and certificates
of deposit from financial institutions totaling $89,279 and $3,592,955, respectively. All of theearrent portions of securities held-to-
maturity are U.S. Agency securities that maturedfi6. The estimated fair value of all held-to-mijusecurities at December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively, was approximately $19,712,36b%17,472,041. The Company has pledged $600r0868curities to cover any future
draw against its line of credit (see Note 5) ansl theposited a U.S. Treasury security of $265,0@&anow for the payment of rent and
performance of other obligations specified in &ade dated July 12, 2000 (see Note 5). The andeypatsited in escrow for the lease
decreases $65,000 annually throughout the termeoliease.

Fair value of held-to-maturity investrhsacurities are based on quoted, or other indegregncharket prices. While these securities
have an unrealized loss position at December 314 2Banagement does not believe the loss represemtiher-than-temporary impairment.
The Company has the ability and the intent to tiaddsecurities until maturity, at which time thestof the investments will be recovered.
These unrealized losses are mainly attributed amgés in interest rates and are individually lbas tone percent of their respective amort
cost.

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are recordedst ©epreciation is computed using the straigig-fhethod with estimated useful lives of five
and seven years. Laboratory equipment, office engeiy, leased equipment and software are depreaatxd life of five years. Furniture
and fixtures are depreciated over a life of seveary. Leasehold improvements are amortized oveethaining lease period. The Company
periodically reviews its furniture and fixtures fionpairment in accordance with Statement of Finaingtcounting Standards No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of L-Lived Asset§‘Statement No. 144"), to determine any impairmtbiatt needs to be
recognized.
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Patents and License

Patents and licenses are recorded atoosamortized on a straight-line basis over tesiimated useful lives or 20 years, whichever is
lesser. The Company periodically reviews its patamd licenses for impairment in accordance wigltedtent No. 144 to determine any
impairment that needs to be recognized. Duringjtieeter ended June 30, 2002, the Company abandoaelkvelopment of peramivir, its
influenza neuraminidase inhibitor. As a resulg @ompany recognized an expense of $373,900 dthvinguarter ended June 30, 2002
related to the patents for the neuraminidase itdhi as they no longer have any readily deterndénadlue to the Company.

Research and Development Expent

Major components of R&D expenses corfigtersonnel costs, including salaries and beneditsical, regulatory and toxicology
services performed by contract research organizaiGRO’s), materials and supplies, and overhdadadlons consisting of various
administrative and facilities related costs. Thenpany charges clinical and preclinical study ctstsxpense when incurred, consistent with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Néc2zounting for Research and Development C@Ststement No. 2”). These costs are a
significant component of R&D expenses. Most of @@mpany’s clinical and preclinical studies arefpened by third-party CRO’s. The
Company accrues costs for studies performed by GR@er the service periods specified in the cotgrand adjust estimates, if required,
based upon our on-going review of the level of meactually performed by the CRO.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used in accougtfor income taxes in accordance with Statemefirdncial Accounting Standards No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxi(“Statement No. 109”). Under this method, defeit@dassets and liabilities are determined basetiftarences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assgtdiabilities and are measured using the enaatethtes and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse.

Revenue Recognitio

The Company recognizes revenue in acooalwith SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 1(Revenue RecognitidiSAB No. 104”).
Research and development revenue on cost-reimbardergreements is recognized as expenses areddcu to contractual limits.
Research and development fees, license fees andtarie payments are recognized as revenue wheairthi@ags process is complete, the
Company has no further continuing performance aliligns and has completed its performance unddethes of the agreement, in
accordance with SAB No. 104. License fees and moilespayments received under licensing agreemieatste related to future performa
are deferred and recognized as earned over thmatetl drug development period. Revisions to revenyofit estimates as a result of
changes in the estimated drug development permdeaognized prospectively. The Company has neived any royalties from the sale of
licensed pharmaceutical products.

Net Loss Per Shar

The Company computes net loss per shaaedordance with Statement of Financial Accoun8tandards No. 12&arnings per Shar
(“Statement No. 128")Net loss per share is based upon the weighted gezenamber of common shares outstanding duringéhiegh Dilutec
loss per share includes common equivalent shaves dinexercised stock options and shares expectasligsued under the Company’s
employee stock purchase plan. For all periods ptedediluted loss per share does not includertipact of potential common shares
outstanding, as the impact of those shares isddative.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based emsgtion under Accounting Principles Board Opirlim 25,Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employee§'APB No. 25”). Under APB No. 25, the Company’sch option and employee stock purchase plans guedif
noncompensatory plans. Under Financial Accouritemdards Board Interpretation No. A¢counting for Certain Transactions involving
Stock Compensation, an Interpretation of APB No(“EBN No. 44"), outside directors are consideredptogees for purposes of applying
APB No. 25, if they are elected by the sharehold€rsnsequently, no compensation expense for eraptognd directors is recognized unless
there has been a modification to their grants asthe case for the directors in May 2004, resuliting recognized expense of $457,000
during 2004. Stock issued to non-employees is cosgiery and compensation expense is recognized Stakement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 128¢ccounting for Stock-Based Compensafi@tatement No. 123”), as amended by Statemenirafri€ial
Accounting Standards No. 14&ccounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transdiwh Disclosurg“Statement No. 148”).

The following table illustrates the parha effect on net loss and net loss per sharghea@ompany applied the fair value recognition
provisions of Statement No. 123 for the years erdecember 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. See Notethdaissumptions used to compute the
pro forma amounts.

2004 2003 2002
Net loss as reporte $ (21,104,12) $ (12,700,08) $ (16,928,67)
Add stocl-based employee compensation expense includeddonteelpnet los: 512,42° 119,67¢ 120,19(
Deduct total stock-based employee compensationnsepdetermined under

Statement No. 12 (2,260,55) (2,178,78) (1,922,78)
Pro forma net los $ (22,852,24) $ (14,759,18) $ (18,731,26)
Amounts per common shal
Net loss per share, as repor $ (1.00 % (72 $ (.96
Pro forma net loss per shs $ (1.0¢) $ (83 $ (1.0€)

In December 2004, the Financial Accoun@tandards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of iéfe Accounting Standards No. 123
(R), Share-Based PaymefiStatement No. 123R"), which is a revision of tatent No. 123 and supersedes APB No. 25. The Statem
addresses the accounting for transactions in wdnchnterprise receives employee services in exehfanda) equity instruments of the
enterprise or (b) liabilities that are based onftievalue of the enterprise’s equity instrumemtshat may be settled by the issuance of such
equity instruments. The Statement eliminates tlié@yato account for shar&ased compensation transactions using APB No.rzbganerall
would require instead that such transactions bewatted for using a grant date fair-value based atet@ompanies will now be required to
recognize an expense for compensation cost relatelthrebased payment arrangements including stock optindsemployee stock purchi
plans. The new rules will be applied on a modifiedspective basis as defined in Statement No. 1a88&would be effective for public
companies as of the beginning of the first inteoinannual reporting period that begins after JUusne2005. The Company is currently
evaluating option valuation methodologies and aggiams in light of Statement No. 123R and currestingates of option values using the
Black-Scholes method (as shown above) may notdiedtive of results from valuation methodologiesnuditely adopted by the Company.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdanformity with accounting principles generalbcapted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfizttthe amounts reported in the financial statetsieExamples include accrued clinical
and preclinical expenses. Actual results coulcediffom those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2003 and 200fira statements have been reclassified to confortihhe 2004 financial statement
presentation. The changes had no effect on thétsedloperations previously reported.
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Note 2 - Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment consisted offtiiewing at December 31:

2004 2003
Furniture and fixture $ 330,677 $ 330,67
Office equipmen 581,52( 567,14:
Software 489,87 490,03
Laboratory equipmer 3,595,85! 3,368,18!
Leased equipmel 62,71 62,71z
Leasehold improvemen 4,670,00! 4,646,901
9,730,64! 9,465,65;
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (6,913,49) (5,957,94)
Furniture and equipment, n $ 2817,15 $ 3,507,70!

Long-lived assets and certain identigaibtangible assets to be held and used are redi&wémpairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amousuch assets may not be recoverable. Determinatimcoverability is based on an estimate
of undiscounted future cash flows resulting from tise of the asset and its eventual dispositiotihdrevent that such cash flows are not
expected to be sufficient to recover the carryingpant of the assets, the assets are written dowretoestimated fair values. Long-lived
assets and certain identifiable intangible asseltetdisposed of are reported at the lower of aagrgmount or fair value less cost to sell.

The Company has reviewed its furnituré aquipment for possible impairment in accordanitke Statement No. 144 for the year
ended December 31, 2004. As a result, the Compaoyded an impairment charge of $10,922 to writerdsome impaired assets to their
estimated fair values. This charge, primarily redato laboratory equipment, has been charged teediepion and amortization expense.

Note 3 - Concentration of Credit and Market Risk

The Company invests its excess cashipatlg in U.S. marketable securities from a diviesl portfolio of institutions with strong
credit ratings and in U.S. government and agenity dnd notes and, by policy, limits the amountidit exposure at any one institution.
These investments are generally not collateral@@matimature within less than three years. The Cognpas not realized any losses from such
investments. At December 31, 2004, $6,589,931 massted in the Merrill Lynch Premier Institutioiaind, which invests primarily in
commercial paper, U.S. government and agencydnidsnotes, corporate notes, certificates of deposittime deposits. The Merrill Lynch
Premier Institutional Fund is not insured.

Note 4 - Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses were comprised of theviing at December 31:

2004 2003
Accrued clinical trials $ 330,92( $ 355,95
Accrued consulting 128,50¢ 25,00(
Stock purchase plan withholdin 54,47¢ 49,19¢
Accrued othe 50,05¢ 37,53¢

Accrued expense $ 563,96. $ 467,69(
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Note 5 - Lease Obligations and Other Contingencies
The Company had an unused line of c&fdd¥500,000 at December 31, 2004.

The Company has the following lease @blans at December 31, 2004

Operating
Leases
2005 $ 622,10!
2006 580,02
2007 535,74t
2008 545,78
2009 560,95:
Thereaftel 284,62.
Total minimum payment $ 3,129,23.

Rent expense for operating leases wa3,968, $603,996 and $651,506 in 2004, 2003 and,2@8@ectively. The commitment for
operating leases is primarily related to the batdiease, which expires in June 2010. The leasamended effective July 1, 2001 for
additional space, requires monthly rents of $33H&dinning in July 2001 and escalating annuallg toinimum of $47,437 per month in the
final year. The Company has an option to renewehse for an additional five years at the curreatket rate on the date of termination a
one-time option to terminate the lease on Jun€@08, subject to a reasonable termination fee.

On August 5, 2002, at the request oftthrapensation committee, our Board of Directors epgd a reduction in salary of 25% for Dr.
Charles E. Bugg, Chairman and Chief Executive @ffand Dr. J. Claude Bennett, President, Chief &y Officer and Medical Director,
effective August 1, 2002. In the event of any g®af control of the Company, any cumulative sataguctions up to the date of the change
of control would become due and payable. The mgrathiount of the reduction was $14,677 combinedD&cember 8, 2003, the Board of
Directors approved the recommendation of the comsgitan committee to restore their salaries to thevious amounts effective January 1,
2004, leaving the cumulative reduction of $249,608tanding in the event of a change in control.

Note 6 - Income Taxes

The Company has not had taxable incomseshcorporation and, therefore, has not paidiacgme tax. Deferred tax assets of
approximately $56,410,000 and $46,630,000 at Deeei®ib, 2004 and 2003, respectively, have been réped principally for net operating
loss and research and development credit carryfosyand have been reduced by a valuation allowan$86,410,000 and $46,630,000 at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The tialuallowance will remain at the full amount oktbeferred tax asset until it is more
likely than not that the related tax benefits Wil realized.

At December 31, 2004, the Company hadpetating loss and research and development aaditforwards (“Carryforward Tax
Benefits”) of approximately $114,100,000 and $18,800, respectively, which will expire at varioustes beginning in 2005 and continuing
through 2024. Use of the Carryforward Tax Benefilt be subject to a substantial annual limitataure to the change of ownership
provisions of the Tax Reform Act of 1986. The arrdumaitation is expected to result in the expiratiof a portion of the Carryforward Tax
Benefits before utilization. The ownership chandech occurred in 1996 has been considered by tmep@ay in its computations under
Statement No. 109. Due to recent stock issuantcisspossible that additional limitations could mntly apply. The Company has not
performed a detailed analysis to determine if aditehal ownership change has occurred under thedde or to determine its impact on its
ability to use these net operating loss and rekeaedit carryforwards. However, it is not antidgthat any such analysis would have a
material impact on the balance sheet as a resuoffs#tting changes in the deferred tax valuatitoweance.
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Note 7 — Stockholders’ Equity

On February 4, 2004, the Company enterteda Placement Agency Agreement with Leerink Sw&rCompany in connection with a
registered direct offering of 3,571,667 sharesoEommon stock at an offering price of $6.00 pers. The common stock was issued
pursuant to a prospectus supplement filed withSieurities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 84€b)(2) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, the Securities Act, in connegtitina shelf takedown from the Company’s regisbrastatement on Form S-3 (333-
111226), filed on December 16, 2003 and which beceffective on January 5, 2004.

On February 17, 2004, the Company entierteda Stock Purchase Agreement with Caduceustrinvestments I, LP, Caduceus
Private Investments Il (QP), LP and UBS JunipersSower Fund, L.L.C. As part of this agreement,Gbenpany has granted these investors
the right to appoint a member to its board of dwexeffective as of the closing of the offeringn February 18, 2004, the Company
announced it had completed a $21.4 million regéstelirect offering of 3,571,667 shares of its comratock to a group of institutional
investors.

In June 2002, the Board of Directors addm stockholder rights plan and, pursuant theretaed preferred stock purchase rights
(“Rights”) to the holders of our common stock. TRights have certain anti-takeover effects. fdered, the Rights would cause substantial
dilution to a person or group of persons who aegumore than 15% (19.9% for William W. FeatheripngilDirector who owned
approximately 13% at December 31, 2004, but owneckrthan 15% at the time the Rights were put iog)laf the Company’s common
stock on terms not approved by the Board of Dimectd he rights are not exercisable until the diation date, as defined in the Rights
Agreement by and between the Company and Ameritack Sransfer & Trust Company, as Rights Agent.e Rights will expire at the clo
of business on June 24, 2012, unless that finafaign date is extended or unless the rights arkee redeemed or exchanged by the
Company.

Each Right entitles the registered hotdgrurchase from the Company one one-thousanditsbére of Series B Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (“Series B”), par value $0.001gi&re, at a purchase price of $26.00, subjectjtsimdent. Shares of Series B purchasable
upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemaBlach share of Series B will be entitled to adkwvid of 1,000 times the dividend declared
per share of common stock. In the event of ligtiiha each share of Series B will be entitled fsagment of 1,000 times the payment made
per share of common stock. Each share of Serigdl Bave 1,000 votes, voting together with the e¢oam stock. Finally, in the event of any
merger, consolidation, or other transaction in Whshares of common stock are exchanged, each ahSegies B will be entitled to receive
1,000 times the amount received per share of constumk.

In November 1991, the Board of Directadepted the 1991 Stock Option Plan (“Plan”) for keyployees and consultants of the
Company and reserved 500,000 shares of common f&pidsuance under the Plan. The Plan was apprioyélde stockholders on December
19, 1991. The original term of the Plan was foryears and included provisions for issuance of lpatentive stock options and non-statutory
options. The exercise price of options granted utttePlan shall not be less than the fair markéterof common stock on the grant date.
Options granted under the Plan generally vest 266 ane year and monthly thereafter on a prolatis over the next three years until fully
vested after four years and expire ten years #ftegrant date. Options are generally granted falktime employees.

The Plan was amended and restated irukgbi993 to effect the following changes: (i) deithe Plan into two separate incentive
programs: the Discretionary Option Grant Prograunh thie Automatic Option Grant Program (for outsideebtors), (ii) increase the number
of shares of the Company’s common stock availainésuance under the Plan by 500,000 shares ignex@and the level of benefits
available under the Plan. The Board amended #e &1 December 23, 1993 to increase the numbdranés issuable under the Plan by
500,000 shares and subsequently amended and detftatelan in its entirety on February 8, 1994 March 16, 1995, the Board authorized
another 500,000 shares for issuance under the Flam Plan was subsequently amended and restdgadive¥ March 3, 1997, which
amendment and restatement included an increas@@d,000 shares. The Plan (as so amended ancerhsiats further amended March 1,
1999 to increase the share reserve by 400,000ssh@lee Board amended and restated the Planeéntitety on March 6, 2000, which
increased the reserved shares by 1,200,000 anadextehe term of the Plan for ten years from thte dathe amendment. This restatement
was approved by the Company’s stockholders on Ma@Q00. The Plan was amended March 8, 2004 tease the number of shares
reserved for issuance by 1,000,000 and to amenautoenatic option grant program related to inigiednts, vesting and option terms. The
automatic option grant program grants options telpase 10,000 shares to new non-employee Board ersngrorated from their initial
appointment to the next Annual Meeting, and antaafdil 10,000 shares annually over such periocafinued service all of which vest one-
twelfth per month. Directors receiving options unttee automatic option grant program will have filleterm of the original option to
exercise all options vested at the time of thefisaéion from service. This amendment was approyadéCompany’s stockholders on May
12, 2004. The vesting and exercise provisions tbap granted under the Plan are subject to aatearin the event of certain stockholder-
approved transactions, or upon the occurrenceGifamge in Control as defined by the Plan.
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The following is an analysis of stockiops for the three years ended December 31, 2004:

Weighted

Options Options Average
Available Outstanding Exercise Price
Balance December 31, 20 583,70t 3,021,27 $ 9.4:
Options grante: (443,73Y 443,73! 1.44
Options cancele 466,52: (466,52) 8.14
Balance December 31, 20 606,49: 2,998,48! 8.4t
Options grante: (546,000 546,00( 1.27
Options exercise — (186,22 4.7z
Options cancele 440,32! (440,32) 8.8:
Balance December 31, 20 500,81¢ 2,917,93 7.2¢
Option plan amende 1,000,001 — —
Options grante: (499,19) 499,19 8.7¢
Options exercise — (283,63¢) 3.81
Options cancele 34,14¢ (34,149 4.1C
Balance December 31, 20 1,035,77. 3,099,34. 7.8¢

There were 2,220,583, 1,979,152 and 29BWoptions exercisable at December 31, 2004, 26632002, respectively. The weighted-
average exercise price for options exercisable$884, $9.71 and $9.67 at December 31, 2004, 2002@02, respectively.

The following table summarizes, at Decentil, 2004, by price range: (1) for options oudiag, the number of options outstanding,
their weighted-average remaining life and theirghééd-average exercise price; and (2) for optiomsasable, the number of options
exercisable and their weighted-average exercisepri

Outstanding Exercisable

Range Number Life Price Number Price
$0t0$3 715,71: 8.0 $ 1.12 345,98. $ 1.28
3to 6 273,24 7.0 3.72 218,76¢ 3.67
6to 9 1,498,08. 5.7 7.84 1,043,52. 7.44
9to 12 12,18¢ 2.8 9.67 12,18¢ 9.67
12to 15 280,68 2.2 14.14 280,68 14.14
15to 18 93,89¢ 2.0 16.38 93,89¢ 16.38
21to 24 205,92( 5.0 22.84 205,92( 22.84
24t0 30 19,62( 5.4 26.83 19,62( 26.83
0to 30 3,099,34 5.8 7.88 2,220,58: 8.94

As of December 31, 2004, there were ayreagate of 4,286,416 shares reserved for futuuaigs under both the Plan and the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) discusséibia 8.
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The Company follows APB No. 25 in accongtfor both the Plan and the ESPP and, accordimigigs not recognize any compensation
cost related to options granted to employees oremoployee Directors, unless there is a modificatmthe original option that would require
recognition of compensation cost under FIN No.Fgt.example, in May 2004, the stockholders appraredmendment to Automatic Opti
Grant Program for directors, which resulted in@wnpany recognizing $457,000 in compensation expeglated to this amendment during
2004. The Company has adopted the disclosure mrgaints of Statement No. 123, as amended by Statéinet48. Since Statement No.
123 is only applied to options granted after 1984,pro forma disclosure should not necessarilgdmsidered indicative of future pro forma
results when the full four-year vesting (the perilodvhich the compensation cost is recognizedjdtuided in the disclosure in 2002. The fair
value of each option is estimated on the grant dsitgy the Black-Scholes option-pricing method vifite following weighted-average
assumptions used for grants in 2004, 2003 and 286Rectively: no dividends; expected volatilityl®3.1, 104.4 and 104.4 percent; riske
interest rate of 4.0, 3.0 and 3.6 percent; and@rpdives of five years. The weighted-average gdarte fair values of options granted during
2004 under the Plan and ESPP were $6.80 and $¢§¥ctively. The compensation cost recorded ftolep issued to non-employee
consultants, was $512,427, $119,676 and $120,19Béo/ears ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and & ctively, which included
$456,787 in 2004 related to the modification ofieps for outstanding directors as a result of tmemadment to the Plan during 2004.

Note 8 - Employee Benefit Plans

On January 1, 1991, the Company adoptezhgployee retirement plan (“401(k) Plan”) undecti®m 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code covering all employees. Employee contributimay be made to the 401(k) Plan up to limits esthbd by the Internal Revenue Serv
Company matching contributions may be made at i@ eation of the Board of Directors. The Companydmenatching contributions of
$171,601, $158,425 and $217,097 in 2004, 2003 86d,2espectively.

On May 29, 1995, the stockholders appidbhe ESPP effective February 1, 1995. On May 0822the stockholders approved an
amendment to the ESPP to reserve an additionaD@0Ghares and eliminate the January 2005 terramdtte. The Company has reserved a
total of 400,000 shares of common stock under R of which 151,301 shares remain availabledochase at December 31, 2004.
Eligible employees may authorize up to 15% of tisaiary to purchase common stock at the lower & 865the beginning or 85% of the
ending price during the six-month purchase intexMdb more than 3,000 shares may be purchasedybyrenemployee at the six-month
purchase dates and no employee may purchase stotigha fair market value at the commencement afg$25,000 or more in any one
calendar year. There were 31,695, 27,964 and B&Hhares of common stock purchased under the BSE®4, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, at a weighted average price per sbig$8.82, $0.74 and $2.45, respectively.

Note 9 - Collaborative and Other Research and Dewgbment Contracts

The Company granted Novartis Corporatiormerly Ciba-Geigy Corporation, an option in 138acquire exclusive licenses to a class
of inhibitors arising from research performed by @ompany by February 1991. The option was exatcsd a $500,000 fee was paid to the
Company in 1993. Milestone payments are due upproapl of a new drug application. The Company aito receive royalties based upc
percentage of sales of any resultant productsol$300,000 of the initial fee received is refundabkales of any resultant products are bi
specified levels and has been recorded as def@vetiue. This agreement has been inactive for akyears.

On November 7, 1991, the Company entareda joint research and license agreement with Thiversity of Alabama at Birmingham
(“UAB"). UAB performed specific research on Complent Factors for the Company for a period of appnately three years in return for
research and license fees. The agreement was edddgca new agreement on July 18, 1995 grantin@tmpany a worldwide license in
exchange for funding certain UAB research and slgari any royalties or sublicense fees arising ftbejoint research. On November 17,
1994, the Company entered into another agreemeatjfint research and license agreement on inflae@uraminidase granting the
Company a worldwide license. Under this agreentaetCompany funded certain UAB research and UABeshi any royalties or
sublicense fees arising from the joint researcte Chmpany completed its research funding requiyetthé agreements for both projects in
1998, but is still required to pay minimal annuetéhse fees and share any future royalties with UAB

On December 23, 2003, the Company traresfe¢o 3-Dimensional Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“3DR"Wholly owned subsidiary of
Johnson & Johnson, certain rights related to comefe system inhibitors discovered during our calalive research agreement with 3DP,
which was terminated by BioCryst on October 18,2@®JoCryst received an initial payment from 3DRdavill receive royalties on any
future sales of complement inhibitors covered underassignment.
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In April 1999, the Company entered intoagreement with Sunol Molecular Corporation (“St)ndhis agreement requires Sunol to
conduct research and supply the Company with pro&egets for drug design to expedite the discoeérnew drug candidates designed to
inhibit tissue factor/factor Vlla for the Companyardiovascular program.

In June 2000, the Company licensed @&serf potent inhibitors of purine nucleoside phasplase (“PNP”), from Albert Einstein
College of Medicine of Yeshiva University and Inthied Research, Ltd, New Zealand. The lead drugichie from this collaboration is
forodesine hydrochloride. In 2002, the Company&sed the right to a second compound, BCX-4208imseries of inhibitors The
Company has the rights to develop and ultimatedjridiute these, or any other, drug candidatesntigitt arise from research on these
inhibitors. The Company has agreed to pay cerdli@stone payments for future development of thelibitors, pay certain royalties on
sales of any resulting product, and to share imrupayments received from other third-party calalbors, if any.

In June 2000, the Company licensed ietéllal property from Emory University (“Emory”) edkd to the hepatitis C polymerase target
associated with hepatitis C viral infections. Untler terms of the agreement, the research invéstggcom Emory provide the Company
with materials and technical insight into the targehe Company has agreed to pay Emory royaltiesabes of any resulting product and to
share in future payments received from other thady collaborators, if any.

Note 10 — Subsequent Events

On February 9, 2005, the Company enterteda Placement Agency Agreement with Leerink Sw&rCompany in connection with a
registered direct offering of 4,350,000 sharesoEommon stock at an offering price of $5.50 pers. The common stock was issued
pursuant to a prospectus supplement filed withSibeurities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 84€b)(2) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, the Securities Act, in connegtitina shelf takedown from the Company’s regisbrastatement on Form S-3 (333-
111226), filed on December 16, 2003 and which beceffective on January 5, 2004.

On February 17, 2005, the Company entigtteda Stock Purchase Agreement with Baker Brath@restments, L.P., Baker Brothers
Investments II, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund I, L.PakBr Biotech Fund IlI, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund4),(L.P., Baker Biotech Fund IlI, L.P.,
Baker Biotech Fund Il (Z), L.P., Baker/Tisch Inteents, L.P., and 14159, L.P., or the Baker inwsdfor a total of 1,454,545 of the shares
of common stock issued in the offering. As parthig agreement, the Company has granted thesstorgethe right to appoint a member to
its board of directors effective as of the closifighe offering, or for a period of twelve monttwléwing the closing. On February 22, 2005,
the Company announced it had completed a $23.®milegistered direct offering of 4,350,000 sharkiss common stock to a group of
institutional investors.

Note 11 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statéde. 123(R), which is a revision of Statement lp3. Statement No. 123R requires all
share-based payments to employees and directbesrecognized in the financial statements basdti@infair values, superseding APB No.
25 and its related implementation guidance. Uid&B No. 25, issuing stock options to employees ddalve resulted in no compensation
cost. Statement No. 123R eliminates this alteveaind requires entities to expense the cost of@me services received in exchange for
stock options based on the grant date fair valubaxde awards. The Company currently accountssf@mployee stock options in accorda
with APB No. 25 while disclosing the pro forma eff@f the options had they been recorded undefaihg@alue method. As required by
Statement No. 123R, the Company plans to adopttlised statement on July 1, 2005. It is antieéigahat the adoption of this statement
have an impact on the Company’s results of operafibut the Company has not completed its evaluatidhis impact.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Stat¢mmieFinancial Accounting Standards No. 1B3changes of Nonmonetary Assets — an
amendment of Accounting Principles Board Opinion 28x“Statement No. 153"). This statement addressesitbasurement of exchanges
of nonmonetary assets. It eliminates the exceftam fair value measurement for nonmonetary exgkarof similar productive assets in
paragraph 21(b) of Accounting Principles Board @pirNo. 29 and replaces it with an exception fartenges that do not have commercial
substance. Statement No. 153 is effective for roretary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal pefiedénning after June 15, 2005. The
adoption of this statement will not have a sig@ifitimpact on the Company’s results of operatiorf;ancial position.
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Note 12 - Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) (In thousands, except per share)

First Second Third Fourth

2004 Quarters

Revenue: $ O 43 $ 11€ $ 17¢

Net loss (5,462) (5,057 (5,296 (5,289

Net loss per shai (.29 (.23 (.29 (-29
2003 Quarters

Revenue! $ 0 $ 0 3 0 3 652

Net loss (2,78¢) (3,252) (3,409 (3,250

Net loss per shai (.16) (.18 (.19 (.18

Net loss and net loss per share each year may tfifi@ the total of the individual quarters dugdonding.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balaheets of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of Beg 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related
statements of operations, stockholders’ equitycash flows for each of the three years in the peginded December 31, 2004. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@mmpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpian opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordanch thi¢ standards of the Public Company Accountingr€ight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform an auadibtain reasonable assurance about whetheinduecfal statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by maregeas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statememgferred to above present fairly, in all materedpects, the financial position of BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of December 31, 2004 @6d,2nd the results of its operations and its 8asis for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity Wwit8. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting §lght Board (United States), the
effectiveness of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inmtsiinal control over financial reporting as of Dexter 31, 2004, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission
and our report dated March 14, 2005 expressed qualified opinion thereon.

/s| ERNST& Y OUNGLLP

Birmingham, Alabama
March 14, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of BioCBsirmaceuticals, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessmelotied in the accompanying Management’'s Repoihtarnal Control Over Financial
Reporting, that BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. naimed effective internal control over financiapogting as of December 31, 2004, base
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrafgdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgafizations of the Treadway
Commission (“the COSO criteria”). BioCryst Pharmatbeals, Inc.5 management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control ove
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifilecéiveness of internal control over financial oefing. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinitimeceffectiveness of the company’s internal adrdver financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance trighstandards of the Public Company Accountingrélght Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahgaéug the design and operating effectivenessitefrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesaaonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over finaalaieporting is a process designed to provide ressle assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over firgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jge reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygsats that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, gl control over financial reporting may not pretrer detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessnimattBioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained ¢iffednternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly state@ll material respects, based on the COSOriitélso, in our opinion, BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained, in all mategapects, effective internal control over financ&dorting as of December 31, 2004, based on
the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgbt Board (United States), the
accompanying balance sheets of BioCryst Pharmaadsitinc. as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, ancelated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each ofttlree years in the period ended December 31, @0B#bCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and
our report dated March 14, 2005 expressed an uifigdabpinion thereon.

/s ERNST& Y OUNGLLP

Birmingham, Alabama
March 14, 2005
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a set of disclosure contasld procedures that are designed to ensure tloariafion relating to BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. required to be disclosediimperiodic filings under the Securities Exchange i& recorded, processed, summarizec
reported in a timely manner under the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934. We carried out an evaluatioen the supervision and with the
participation of management, including our ChietEuxtive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of teffectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and proceduBased upon that evaluation, the Chief Executiffec€ and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of December 31, 2004, the Coypalisclosure controls and procedures are effetdiemsure that information requirec
be disclosed by BioCryst in the reports filed dormitted by it under the Securities Exchange Act@84, as amended, is recorded, processed
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipd in the SEC’s rules and forms, and includatoals and procedures designed to
ensure that information required to be disclose®imCryst in such reports is accumulated and comoated to the Company’'managemen
including the Chairman and Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer of BioCryst, as appiiepe to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, (the “Company”) is responsible for establishémgl maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting and for the assgamst of the effectiveness of internal control ofieancial reporting. As defined by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, internal cobotrer financial reporting is a process designedadoyunder the supervision of the
Company’s principal executive and principal finatafficers and effected by the Company’s Boar®wéctors, management and other
personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regattirreliability of financial reporting and thegpiaration of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally aedegtcounting principles.

The Company’s internal control over finah reporting is supported by written policies grdcedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detxlrately and fairly reflect the Company’s tratiges and dispositions of the Company’s
assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance thahttzorss are recorded as necessary to permit ptégpacd the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally acceptealiating principles, and that receipts and expenett of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of the Comypsmanagement and directors; and (3) provideomse assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asijion, use or disposition of the Company’s as#ieds could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, gl control over financial reporting may not pretrer detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of @@mpany’s annual financial statements, manageh@ntindertaken an assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting as of December 31, 2004, dasecriteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Comemibf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway @msion (the COSO Framework).
Management'’s assessment included an evaluatidreafdsign of the Company’s internal control oveaficial reporting and testing of the
operational effectiveness of those controls.
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Based on this assessment, managemenbhekided that as of December 31, 2004, the Compantgrnal control over financial
reporting was effective to provide reasonable aswe regarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancelvih generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent regjistl public accounting firm that audited the Conypafinancial statements included in this
report, have issued an attestation report on manags assessment of internal control over findrrejporting, a copy of which appears on
page 43 of this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our inteordrol over financial reporting that occurredidg the quarter ended December 31, 2004
that have materially affected, or are reasonakbflyito materially affect, BioCryst's internal cook over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None
PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The directors and executive officershaf Company are as follows:

Name Age Position(s) with the Company
Charles E. Bugg, Ph.I 63 Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Direc
J. Claude Bennett, M.L 71 President, Chief Operating Officer, Medical Direcémd Directol
Michael A. Darwin 43 Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treas!
Randall B. Rigg: 38 Vice President, Business Developm
William W. Featheringill 62 Director
Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.D. (: 40 Director
John L. Higgins (1)(2 35 Director
Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.D. (1 70 Director
Joseph H. Sherrill, Jr. (. 64 Director
William M. Spencer, llI 84 Director
Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.D. ( 55 Director

(1) Member of the Compensation Committ* Compensation Committ”).

(2) Member of the Audit Committe¢ Audit Committer”).

Charles E. Bugg, Ph.vas named Chairman of the Board, Chief Executiic&fand Director in November 1993 and President i
January 1995. He relinquished the position ofiBlest in December 1996 when Dr. J. Claude Bennéted the Company in that position.
Prior to joining the Company, Dr. Bugg had beeneanher of the faculty of the University of AlabantaBirmingham (“UAB”) since 1968,
having served as Professor of Biochemistry, Diresfdhe Center for Macromolecular Crystallograpagd Associate Director of the
Comprehensive Cancer Center. He was a foundgio@fryst and served as the Company’s first Chiefdtive Officer from 1987-1988
while on a sabbatical from UAB. Dr. Bugg also seras Chairman of the Company’s Scientific AdvisBoard from January 1986 to
November 1993. He continues to hold the positioRmaffessor Emeritus in Biochemistry and Moleculen€tics at UAB, a position he h
held since January 1994.
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J. Claude Bennett, M.vas named President and Chief Operating Offic&anember 1996 and elected a Director in January.199
Since 2001, Dr. Bennett has also served as theddleDirector. Prior to joining the Company, Dr. Bett was President of The University of
Alabama at Birmingham (“UAB”) from October 1993 Becember 1996 and Professor and Chairman of tharideent of Medicine of UAB
from January 1982 to October 1993. Dr. Bennetteston the Company'’s Scientific Advisory Board fré889-96. He is a former co-editor
of the Cecil Textbook of Medicirend former President of the Association of AmeriP&ysicians. He is the immediate past chair of the
Scientific Advisory Committee of the Massachus@teneral Hospital, a member of the Scientific AdwsBoards of Zycogen, LLC and
Aptamera, Inc., and continues to hold the positibBistinguished University Professor Emeritus #&BJ a position he has held since Jant
1997.

Michael A. Darwifoined BioCryst in June 2000 as Controller. EffeetNovember 1, 2002, Mr. Darwin was appointed CRiafncial
Officer, Secretary and Treasurer. Prior to joinBigCryst, from June 1990 to June 2000, Mr. Darwas Chief Financial Officer of a
privately held company in the food services indudtte began his career at Ernst & Young and sprnyesirs in public accounting practice.

Randall B. Riggsined BioCryst in February 2005 as Vice PresidBossiness Development. Mr. Riggs served as Vicsiéeet,
Business Development at TransMolecular, Inc. anrgimg oncology company from September 2004 to Fatyr@005. Before joining
TransMolecular, he served as a Corporate LicerammBusiness Development consultant for TRUBIONrPlageuticals, Inc. from March
2004 to August 2004. Mr. Riggs was previously SeNice President, Corporate Licensing and Busimsgelopment at Lexicon Genetics
Incorporated from February 2000 to March 2004 ardexdd as Vice President, Business Development Beoember 1998 to February 2000.
Prior to joining Lexicon Genetics, Mr. Riggs wagéitor of Business Development for the Infectioise@se Unit of GeneMedicine, Inc. Mr.
Riggs began his pharmaceutical and biotechnologinkss development career with Eli Lilly and Compaatarting as a District Sales
Manager and advancing to Manager, Corporate BusiDeselopment.

William W. Featheringilivas elected a Director in May 1995. Mr. FeathetingiChairman of the Board, since June 1995, ecEbnic
Healthcare Systems, a software company, and Presideief Executive Officer and director, since 39a@f Private Capital Corporation, a
venture capital company. Mr. Featheringill was @inain and Chief Executive Officer of MACESS Corpamat which designs and installs
paperless data management systems for the managenhdustry, from 1988 to November 1995. MACES$pOmtion merged with Sunge
Data Systems in late 1995. From 1985 to Decemb@4,1dr. Featheringill was the developer, Chairmad Bresident of Complete Health
Services, Inc., a health maintenance organizatisiclwgrew, under his direction, to become one eflingest HMOs in the southeastern
United States. Complete Health Services, Inc. wgsised by United HealthCare Corporation in Jun@419

Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.D was elected a Director in March 2004. Dr. Gor@oa founding General Partner of OrbiMed Advisors
LLC, an asset management firm focused on the globalthcare industry, and has served in such dgpsioce 1998. Dr. Gordon was
previously a senior biotechnology analyst at Medrid Isaly, the predecessor firm to OrbiMed, fror83:9997. Dr. Gordon received a
Bachelor's degree from Harvard College, a Ph.Dnatecular biology from the Massachusetts Instibft€echnology, and was a Fellow at
the Rockefeller University.

John L. Higgins/as elected a Director in May 2004. Mr. Higginsigil Connetics as Chief Financial Officer in 199%] has served as
Executive Vice President, Finance and Administratiod Corporate Development since January 2008eHed as Executive Vice Presidi
Finance and Administration, from January 2000 taddeber 2001, and as Vice President, Finance andmstnation from September 1997
through December 1999. Before joining Conneticsyhe a member of the executive management teano@tyst. Before joining BioCryst
in 1994, Mr. Higgins was a member of the healthtaneking team of Dillon, Read & Co. Inc., an invesht banking firm. He currently
serves as a director of a private company. He veddiis A.B. from Colgate University.

Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.Dwas elected a Director in August 1994. Dr. Horowts Vice President of Business Development anadnitig
at Bristol-Myers Squibb from 1991 until his retirent in April 1994 and previously was Vice Presideiticensing at the same company
from 1990 to 1991. Prior to that he spent over 88rg with The Squibb Institute for Medical Reseancbst recently as Vice President
Research, Planning, & Scientific Liaison. He hasrban independent consultant in pharmaceuticahsegeand business development since
his retirement from Bristol-Myers Squibb in Apri®94. He serves on the Boards of Directors of Avidea., Genaera Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
Palatin Technologies, Inc., DOV Pharmaceuticals)\@®e, Inc., NitroMed, Inc. and Immunicon Corporatio
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Joseph H. Sherrill, Jwas elected a Director in May 1995. Mr. Sherrilvagl as President of R. J. Reynolds (“RJR”) AsieifRa
based in Hong Kong, where he oversaw RJR operatiomss Asia, including licensing, joint ventures a full line of operating companies
from August 1989 to his retirement in October 199dor management positions with RJR include Seviioe President of Marketing for R
Reynolds International, President and Chief Exeeudfficer of R.J. Reynolds Tabacos de Brazil, Brekident and General Manager of R.J.
Reynolds Puerto Rico.

William M. Spencer, llhas been a Director of the Company since its ingephr. Spencer, who is retired, is also a priviatestor in
Birmingham, Alabama. Mr. Spencer is a Founder ef@ompany, and served as Chairman of the Boattea€bmpany from its founding in
1986 until April 1992. He co-founded and operateatibh Industries from 1946 through its merger iGtenuine Parts Company in 1976. He
has founded several businesses and has served Bodnd of Directors of numerous public and privaigporations.

Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.ldgs elected a Director in February 1993. Dr. Stesrbeen an independent pharmaceutical and
biotechnology consultant since 1989, having a blmsakground in business development, medical miackeid regulatory affairs. He was
formerly Chairman, President and CEO of Advancedrapeutics Communications International, a leading regulatory group, and served
as associate director of medical affairs at Matiahoratories, and medical director at Ciba Consunt@rmaceuticals. Dr. Steer serves or
Board of Directors of Techne Corporation and sdvatigately held companies.

In accordance with the terms of the ComyfmCertificate of Incorporation, the Board of Bitors has been divided into three classes
with members of each class holding office for staggd three-year terms. Mr. Featheringill’s, Mr. Bitiss, and Mr. Spencer’s terms expire at
the 2005 annual meeting. Dr. Bennett’'s, Dr. Homgiand Dr. Steer’s terms expire at the 2006 anmeeting, and Dr. Bugg'’s, Dr.
Gordon’s, and Mr. Higgins'terms expire at the 2007 annual meeting (inaaés subject to the election and qualificatiorhefrtsuccessors
to their earlier death, resignation or removal)eaAth annual stockholder meeting, the successting irectors whose terms expire are
elected to serve from the time of their electiod guoalification until the third annual meeting edckholders following their election and ur
a successor has been duly elected and qualifieslpiidvisions of the Comparg/Certificate of Incorporation governing the staggeDirectol
election procedure can be amended only by a shidesf®vote of at least 75% of the eligible votisgcurities. There are no family
relationships among any of the directors and exeeuwaifficers of the Company. The Board has by netswh established the number of
directors of the Company at nine (9) commencing M2y2004. Currently, seven of our directors (MesBeatheringill, Gordon, Higgins,
Horovitz, Sherrill, Spencer and Steer) are indepands defined by the current Nasdagq rules.

The Company has an Audit Committee, ciimgy of Messrs. Gordon, Higgins and Sherrill, whigs responsible for the review of
internal accounting controls, financial reportimglaelated matters. The Audit Committee also recemufs to the Board the independent
accountants selected to be the Company’s auditarseviews the audit plan, financial statementsaundit results. The Board has adopted an
Amended and Restated Audit Committee Charter tlesgtsnall the applicable rules of the Nasdaq Naltibtaaket and the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee Chartartmafound on the Company’s website at www.biocegsh. The Audit Committee
members are “independent” directors as definedhbyNasdaqg National Market listing standards ieafhs of the date hereof and meet
Nasdars financial literacy requirements for audit comegtimembers. The Board of Directors has determimatdMr. Higgins qualifies as t
“audit committee financial expert”.

The Company also has a Compensation Ctirerdonsisting of Messrs. Higgins, Horovitz andebt The Compensation Committee is
responsible for the annual review of officer comgagion and other incentive programs and is autedria award options under the
Company'’s Stock Option Plan. The Board has adopt€dmpensation Committee Charter that meets alippécable rules of the Nasdaq
National Market and the Securities and Exchange@ission. The Charter can be found on the Com’s website at www.biocryst.com.

The Compensation Committee members are “indepehdeattors as defined by the Nasdaq Nationaldgstandards in effect as of the date
hereof.
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The Company has a Corporate Governanté&aminating Committee comprised of all independérdctors with terms not expiring
the current year. The current members of the cotaendre Messrs. Gordon, Higgins, Horovitz and StEee Committee nominates persons
for election or re-election as directors. The Bdaad adopted a Corporate Governance and Nominatongmittee Charter that meets all the
applicable rules of the Nasdag National Market #nedSecurities and Exchange Commission. The Comeniiths established
procedures/qualifications for selecting nomineeas&ill consider nominees recommended in writingluding biographical information and
personal references, by stockholders. All submisstty shareholders should be sent directly to thesr@an of the Board, Dr. Bugg at the
corporate address.

The Company has adopted a Code of Busi@eaduct (the “Code”) applicable to all employéesluding executive officers, and all
Board members. The Code is publicly available @QGbmpany’s website at www.biocryst.com. Any wasvef the Code will be disclosed
through an Form 8-K filing with the Securities daxchange Commission.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Incorporated by reference from our déifei Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with solicitation of proxies for our 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference from our défiei Proxy Statement to be filed in connection vifth solicitation of proxies for our 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Incorporated by reference from our défiiei Proxy Statement to be filed in connection vifth solicitation of proxies for our 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

Incorporated by reference from our déifiiei Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with solicitation of proxies for our 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference from our déifiiei Proxy Statement to be filed in connection with solicitation of proxies for our 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements

Page in
Form 10-K
The following financial statements appear in Iteiwf 8his Form 1-K:
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2004 and 28
Statements of Operations for the years ended Dese&ih 2004, 2003 and 20 29
Statements of Stockhold’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 20@32002 30
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Deme8il 2004, 2003 and 20 31
Notes to Financial Statemer 32041
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding 42-43

48



No financial statement schedules arauthetl because the information is either providethénfinancial statements or is not required
under the related instructions or is inapplicalsld sauch schedules therefore have been omitted.

(b)  Exhibits
Number Description

3.1 Composite Certificate of Incorporation of Registrdncorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to @@mpany’s Form
1C-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 1995 deatgdst 11, 1995

3.2 Bylaws of Registrant as amended March 7, 2005.rparated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Comfmfprm 8-K
filed March 9, 2005

4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, bybatwieen the Company and American Stock Transférust
Company, as Rights Agent, which includes the Qedti€ of Designation for the Series B Junior Pguéiting Preferred
Stock as Exhibit A and the form of Rights Certifeas Exhibit B. Incorporated by reference to Biht.1 to the
Compan’s Form A dated June 17, 200

10.1 1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restatectigéf March 8, 2004. Incorporated by referencExbibit 10.1 to

the Compan’'s Form 1+-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 2004 daigdst 10, 2004

10.2# License Agreement dated April 15, 1993 between @&y Corporation (how merged into Novartis) and t
Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibid@do the Company’s Form S-1 Registration StatérfRegistration
No. 3:-73868).

10.3 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated byeeferto Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form S-8 Riegfion
Statement dated June 14, 2002 (Registration N¢-90582).

10.4# Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of Septemb&€38,between Registrant and Johnson & Johnson Baweint
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibi2# to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the third gelaending
September 30, 1998 dated November 10, 1

10.5# Stockholder’'s Agreement dated as of Septemberd98 between Registrant and Johnson & Johnson Dawelot
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibi2b to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the third geraending
September 30, 1998 dated November 10, 1

10.6 Warehouse Lease dated July 12, 2000 between RBP anlAlabama Limited Liability Company and the Retgint
for office/warehouse space. Incorporated by refezaén Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for second
quarter ending June 30, 2000 dated August 8, 2

10.7 Termination Agreement dated as of September 211 B@@veen Registrant and The R.W. Johnson Pharriceaeu
Research Institute and Ortho-McNeil Pharmaceutloal, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9te Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 2002 datgdst 7, 2002

10.8 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februad00a4, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, @®a&duceus
Private Investments I, LP, Caduceus Private Imaests 1l (QP), LP and UBS Juniper Crossover Fund,@
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form K dated February 17, 20(

10.9 Employment Agreement dated March 17, 2004 betweeiRegistrant and Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D. Incorpdrhy
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Comp’s Form 1-Q for the first quarter ending March 31, 2004 davay 11, 2004

10.10 Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2005 betweeRegistrant and Randall B. Riggs. Incorporated

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form K dated February 7, 200
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10.11 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februar®00B, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Beker Bros.
Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund II, L.P., 8aRros. Investments I, L.P., Baker Biotech Fuh(z), L.P.,
Baker/Tisch Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech FUhd.IP., Baker Biotech Fund I, L.P., Baker Bioteetnd Il (Z),
L.P. and 14159, L.P. Incorporated by referencexailiit 4.1 to the Compar's Form K dated February 17, 200

23 Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Registerddi®éccounting Firm,
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarksr@ct of
2002.
32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarksr@ct of
2002.

# Confidential treatment grante
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sect®orl15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984,Registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoedmly authorized on this 14th day of March, 2005.

B I0CRYSTP HARMACEUTICALS, | NC.

By: /sICHARLESE. Bucc

Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934 this report has been signed byalleving persons on behalf of the

registrant and in the capacities indicated on Ma#th2005:

Signature

Title(s)

/SICHARLESE. B UGG

(Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D

/s/J. CLAUDE B ENNETT

(J. Claude Bennett, M.D

/sIM IcHAEL A. D ARWIN

(Michael A. Darwin)

/s/W iLLiaM W. F EATHERINGILL

(William W. Featheringill)

/sICARL L. G ORDON

(Carl L. Gordon, CFA, Ph.D

/s/JoHNL. H IGGINS

(John L. Higgins

/slZ oLA P. HorRoVITZ

(Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.D.

/s/JOSEPHH. SHERRILL , JR.

(Joseph H. Sherrill, Jr

/sIW ILLIAM M. S PENCER

(William M. Spencer, 111)

/sIRANDOLPH C. STEER

(Randolph C. Steer, M.D., Ph.L

51

Chairman, Chief Executive Offic
and Directol

President, Chief Operating Officer, Medical Dirac
and Director

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial a

Accounting Officer), Secretary and Treasurer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director



Number

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

Sequentially
Numbered
Page

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.1

10.2#

10.3

10.4#

10.5#

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

Composite Certificate of Incorporation of Registrdncorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to @@mpany’s Form
1C-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 1995 datgdst 11, 199¢

Bylaws of Registrant as amended March 7, 2005.rpawated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Comfakprm 8K
filed March 9, 2005

Rights Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, bybatwieen the Company and American Stock Transférust
Company, as Rights Agent, which includes the Qedti€ of Designation for the Series B Junior Pgoditing
Preferred Stock as Exhibit A and the form of Righestificate as Exhibit B. Incorporated by refezerio Exhibit 4.1
to the Compar’s Form {-A dated June 17, 200

1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restatectigff March 8, 2004. Incorporated by referencéxbibit 10.1 tc
the Compan’s Form 1-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 2004 dsigdst 10, 2004

License Agreement dated April 15, 1993 between @bkay Corporation (now merged into Novartis) ahd t
Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibi#i0Go the Company’s Form S-1 Registration Statémen
(Registration No. 3-73868).

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated byeeéerto Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form S-8 Riegfion
Statement dated June 14, 2002 (Registration N¢-90582).

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of Septemb&B28,between Registrant and Johnson & Johnson Baweint
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to Exhibi2li to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the third geraending
September 30, 1998 dated November 10, 1

Stockholder’'s Agreement dated as of Septemberd98 between Registrant and Johnson & Johnson Dawelot
Corporation. Incorporated by reference to ExhiBi2b to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the third gelaending
September 30, 1998 dated November 10, 1

Warehouse Lease dated July 12, 2000 between RBP anlAlabama Limited Liability Company and the Regint
for office/warehouse space. Incorporated by refezdn Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Form 10-Q fur second
quarter ending June 30, 2000 dated August 8, 2

Termination Agreement dated as of September 211 B@6veen Registrant and The R.W. Johnson Pharrtieedeu
Research Institute and Ortho-McNeil Pharmaceutloal, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9te Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 2002 daigdst 7, 2002

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februa®0U4, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, @®aduceus
Private Investments I, LP, Caduceus Private Imaests Il (QP), LP and UBS Juniper Crossover Fund,@
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form K dated February 17, 20(

Employment Agreement dated March 17, 2004 betweeRegistrant and Charles E. Bugg, Ph.D. Incorpdrhy
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s FormQ.€ar the first quarter ending March 31, 2004 davay 11,
2004.

Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2005 betwleeRegistrant and Randall B. Riggs. Incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form K dated February 7, 200
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10.11 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februai®00b, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Baker Bros.
Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund II, L.P., 8aRros. Investments I, L.P., Baker Biotech Fuh(z), L.P.,
Baker/Tisch Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech FUhd.IP., Baker Biotech Fund I, L.P., Baker Bioteetnd Il (Z),
L.P. and 14159, L.P. Incorporated by referencexailiit 4.1 to the Compar's Form K dated February 17, 200

23 Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Registerdadi®éccounting Firm, 55
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Purstiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 55
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z 56
32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarks@ct of

2002. 57
32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarksr@ct of
2002. 57

# Confidential treatment grante
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EXHIBIT 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeein the Registration Statement (Form S-8 N03:138)345, 333-39484, 333-30751 and 33-
95062) pertaining to the BioCryst Pharmaceutidals, 1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restastef March 8, 2004, the Registra
Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-90582 and 33-95068ipag to the BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Emgpe Stock Purchase Plan and the
Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-111226npeng to the shelf registration of up to $60,@ID of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
common stock, of our reports dated March 14, 200b respect to the financial statements of BioCBfsarmaceuticals, Inc., BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. management’s assessmerd efféttiveness of internal control over finanegorting, and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting of BioGtyPharmaceuticals, Inc. included in this Annugb&e(Form 10-K) for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

/s ERNST& Y OUNGLLP

Birmingham, Alabama
March 14, 2005

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Charles E. Bugg, certify the
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitéde a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this reg

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this rep@teing preparec

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finaha@gorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldésire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this



report based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regisanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an atmeport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknedsethe design or operation of internal contratiofiancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnaggement or other employees who have a significdain the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 14, 200 /s/ CHARLESE. B uGG

Charles E. Bug
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
[, Michael A. Darwin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitéde a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this reg

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f)for the registrant and hav

a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures designed und
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this rep@teing preparec

b. designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’slassire controls and procedures and presentedsimethort our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

d. disclosed in this report any change in the regisisanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of anuaimeport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimriernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting



which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involvemnagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 14, 200 /s/ MIcHAEL A. D ARWIN

Michael A. Darwin
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Offic

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of BioCrystaRinaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Ktfte period ending December 31,
2004 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Chaitle Bugg, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-@xlegf 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfewAct of 1934; ani
(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ CHARLESE. B uGG

Charles E. Bug:
Chief Executive Office
March 14, 200:

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of BioCrystafinaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Ktfee period ending December 31,
2004 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the “Report;)Michael A. Darwin, Chief Financial Officer
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-@xdegf 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; ani
(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s MIcHAEL A. D ARWIN

Michael A. Darwin
Chief Financial Officel
March 14, 200:
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